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Louis Group Sfructured Fund PLC

Introduction

On 1 May 2012, by order (“Order”) of the High Court of Justice Civil Division (the
as Joint Inspectors to investigate and report on the affairs of the Louis Group Stru
“Company”) with a specific focus on the six Sums (as defined in the Order). A cop

“Court”) we were appointed
ctured Fund PLC (the
y of the Order is attached as

appendix 1. We were also to report on any other relevant matters that we consider ought to be drawn to the
Court’s attention. This final report follows on from our Second Interim Report to the Court which was

submitted on 19 July 2012.

This final report uses the same terms for the various entities as defined in earlier reports as follows.

Entity Term

Louis Group Structured Fund PLC ‘The Company’
Cayman National Fund Services Limited “The Administrator’
Louis Group Structured Capital Limited ‘LGSC’

LG SP Investments Ltd (formerly Louis Group International Holdings ‘LGSPT’

Limited)

Louis Group International Europe Limited ‘LGIE

Louis Group International Nominees (Two) Limited ‘LGINTwolL.’

Louis Group SLN Limited ‘LGSLN’

Louis Group (Isle of Man) Limited ‘LGIOM’

Timetable of the inspection process:

Date Activity
Gordon Wilson and Michael Simpson appointed as Joint
1 May 2012 Inspectors
31 May 2012 Joint Inspectors’ First Interim Report - refer Appendix 2
19 July 2012 Joint Inspectors’ Second Interim Report - refer Appendix 3

21 September 2012 Joint Inspectors’ Final Report

For any party reading this Final Report without having read our First and Second Interim Reports, we
recommend that you first read our earlier reports as contained in appendices 2 and 3 in order that you may

better put into context this Final Report.
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Louis Group Structured Fund PLC

Summary of activity since
Second Interim Report

We have sought to limit work since the filing of our Second Interim Report to avoid further costs. However,
there are certain matters of relevance that have occurred and we report as follows:

Contact with investors in the Company’s participating
shares

In accordance with the terms of the Order, we could not publicise our appointment as inspectors, and we have
not done so. However, news of our appointment has passed to a number of parties who have an interest in the

Company’s affairs.

During the period since our second report, we have received correspondence from the legal representatives of
two major investors into the Company who had become aware of our appointment. They provided detailed
witness statements concerning their clients’ investments into, and dealings with the Company, as well as copies
of correspondence with certain Louis Group representatives.

We confirmed that the investors’ representations regarding their holding of investments were accurate by
reference to the Company’s share register and made a cursory review of the documents that they sent to us to
determine whether there was any material of relevance to our work.

The documents evidenced that the investors, who collectively have invested over £5m into the Company, have
been communicating with various people in the Louis Group since 2009, including Dr. Alan Louis, regarding
concerns that they have held about their investments. The investors express significant dis-satisfaction and
make various allegations about mis-representation and mis-selling of Louis financial products including shares

in the Company.

It is apparent to us that despite significant efforts on their part, they are not aware of the eurrent financial
situation concerning the Company, and of the various entities that the Company has transferred money to, as
set out in our Second Interim Report.

We have acknowledged their correspondence and informed them that our work is ongoing.

Investor Awareness

It became apparent to us from the investor correspondence that the Company’s investors are not aware of the
full extent of the financial situation of the Company. We noted that in the Directors’ Report and Auditors’
Report in the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 28 February 2011, which were signed on 1
June 2012 and provided to us by the Administrator, (see Appendix ¢ of our Second Interim Report) that there is
reference to our appointment as Inspectors. The Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report state that -

“The Order stipulated that knowledge of these proceedings be restricted to noticed parties and as a
consequence of this, at the date of this report, these financial statements are not to be released to shareholders

or any party not covered by the Order.”

To our knowledge, the financial statements have not been released. As a result, investors are unaware of the
current (albeit for the year ended 28 February 2011) financial situation of Company. We note that per the
Order, the Court may, if it feels fit, and upon request, provide a copy of this final report to any participant in the
Scheme. Given the significant length of time during which the Company has been suspended we consider it to
be entirely understandable that investors would wish to be provided with as much information as possible
about the Company and potentially a copy of this report.
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Louis Group Structured Fund PLC

Information received from LGSPF and LGIE

On 9 August 2012, we received correspondence, and various documents, from the legal representatives of
LGSPI and LGIE. This information was provided in response to our previous requests for access to
information, specifically our letters dated 23 May 2012 and 14 June 2012.

The correspondence, which contains representations about how certain monies were transmitted from the
Company to LGSC and onwards to LGSPI, LGIE and various other parties is broadly consistent with certain
parts of our analysis in our Second Interim Report. The representations are limited and, significantly, do not
disclose the details that we have uncovered through our work.

They also provided various documents that we had not seen before. These documents were purported loan
facility agreements between LGSC and LGSPI as well as purported assignments between LGSPI (as assignor)
and LGSC (as assignee) and documentation seemingly relating to charges in favour of LGSC concerning shares
in Louis Group South Africa.

Whilst it is helpful that these parties provided documents that we had not seen before, they have not provided
all of the information that we asked for, nor have they afforded us the access to third parties and third party
documents that we sought, in order that we might independently verify the situation to our satisfaction. Asa
result, and having reviewed and considered the information provided, we have found no reason to change the
findings and conclusions in our Second Interim Report.

Discussions with the Claimant

Since completing our Second Interim Report, we have met with the Claimant to discuss our findings as well as
the possible future direction of the inspection,

We explained that we believe we have carried out sufficient and reasonable enquiry pursuant to the Order and
that we consider it unlikely that further investigation or inspection will produce information or findings which
will materially contradict our findings to date. Accordingly, we have recommended to the Claimant that the
inspectorship proceedings be concluded.

The Claimant, having heard our thoughts in that regard, asked us for our views as inspectors in relation to
various options open to them regarding possible further regulatory action. We have provided these views to the

Claimant.
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Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

Financial position of the Company

The table below summarises the financial position of the Company and the key changes which have occurred
since the date of these financial statements which are included in appendix 9 within our second interim report,
which forms Appendix 3 to this final report,

2011 Audited Financial | As of our appointment on Current Position

Statements for the year 1 May 2012 £'000 (September 2012) £'000

ended 28 February 2011

£'000

Loans receivable from 16,536 Note 1 Note 1
LGSC .
Cash 9 370 565
Redemptions Payable (1,571) (1,100) Note 1
Other Payables {36) Note 2 Note 2

Note 1 - The 2011 audited financial statements showed total gross loans to LGSC of £29.1m and accrued
interest receivable of £2m. The book value of these loans was subject to a write down provision of £14.6m
(approximately 45%) to leave an audited value of £16.5m. We consider the recoverable value of the loans to
be highly uncertain, given the issues we have identifted in the course of this inspection.

We have ascertained that there have been three payments from LGSC to the Company since those 28
February 2011 financial statements, as shown below -

Month £’000

May 2011 600
March 2012 350
September 2012 1,500
Total 2,450

We have also ascertained that these receipts by the Company have seemingly been paid to the redeeming
shareholders with effect that there are no remaining unpaid redeemed shareholders per the Administrator-

Note 2 — Excludes our fees and expenses as inspectors (see below)

In our second interim report we stated that we considered it to be likely that the Company was insolvent and
unable to pay its debts. This finding tock into account the Company’s cash position, which was at the time
approximately £0.37m, and the recorded £1.1m of unpaid redeemed shareholders which were accounted for as
creditors. For the reasons set out in that report, we were, and remain, entirely uncertain as to the likely
realisable value of the monies paid to LGSC, thus, we concluded that the Company was likely to be insolvent.

Since then, there has been the above noted £1.5m recovery from LGSC, which has seemingly allowed the
Company to pay the redeemed shareholder creditors in full.
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Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

It may well be that the Company would now be considered solvent by applying the same balance sheet test of
solvency that we used previously. However serious concerns remain about the recoverability of the Company’s
remaining assets, as well as its past activities, notably the investments in and out of the Company by LGSPI and
the use of investor monies.

As mentioned earlier in this report, investors in the Company are not fully aware of the financial position of the
Company, nor of the situation at LGSC or LGSPI.

The ability of the Company’s investors to redeem their shares has been suspended since February 2010 and we
consider it to be highly unlikely that this suspension can or will be lifted.

In these circumstances, we remain of the view that it is in the interests of the Company’s investors, as well as
the wider interest of the public of the Isle of Man, that the Company’s affairs be wound up.

Inspector fees

We summarise our fees and expenses as follows:

Inspector fees £ Legal fees £
May 2012 29,292 6,151
June 2012 26,079 2,731
July 2012 28,860 4,896
August 2012 8,138 2,500
Total 92,369 16,278

The above fees and expenses exclude VAT.

We have sent a separate letter to the Court in conjunction with this Final Report which contains detailed
analysis of the work that we have done and a description of how these costs have been incurred, as well as the

hourly rates that we have applied.

We have reviewed the fee notes submitted by our legal advisers, Dougherty Quinn, and are satisfied that their
hourly rates are representative of the market in the Isle of Man for the services that they have provided. We are
also satisfied that the amount of their fees is reasonable in light of the work that we have instructed them to do
and the advice that they have provided to us during our investigations.

The Order prescribes that our remuneration is to be approved by the Court, and we hereby request that the
Court considers, and if it thinks fit, approves our fees and those of our legal adviser.
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Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

Conclusion

We believe that it is unlikely that any additional information will be forthcoming which will cause us to alter our
findings and conclusions materially. In light of our findings as set out in our earlier reports, together with the
events described above, we consider it to be appropriate to conclude our investigations

We have found evidence that the Company has probably suffered an almost total loss of investor capital due to
its exposure to LGSPI, a BVI Company which appears to us to have been engaged in unlicensed deposit taking
activity in the Isle of Man. In so far as we have been able to ascertain, LGSPI is insolvent and unable to pay its
debts as they fall due. In addition, and in so far as we have been able to ascertain, LGSC, the entity that the
Company paid almost all of its capital to, and which subsequently paid almost all of that capital to LGSPI, is
also insolvent, and unable to pay its debts as they fall due.

As we reported in our second interim report, it appears that the information which we have obtained during the
course of our work has been sought for a number of years by parties interested in the Company’s affairs. This
information has, in our view, been purposefully withheld by those who knew the full facts about what was going
on. Our findings, when they become known to the Company’s investors, as well as the investors in LGSLN, a
major investor in the Company, will no doubt cause high levels of concern.

We recommend that steps be taken by the Claimant to intervene as soon as possible in the interests of those
investors, as well as for the wider public interest of the Isle of Man.

This report has been prepared for and only for the High Court of Justice of the Isle of Man pursuant to the Order of 1 May 2012 and for
no other purpose. We do not accept or assume any liability or duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

© 2012 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC. All rights reserved. 'PricewaterhouseCoopers’ refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC (a limited
liability company in the Isle of Man) or, as the context requires, other member firms of PricewaterhowseCoopers International Limited,

each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.
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CHP 12/0035

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE OF THE ISLE OF MAN
CIVIL DIVISION
CHANCERY PROCEDURE

Proceedings under the Companies Act 1974 and the Collective Investment Schemes Act
2008 relating to Louis Group Structured Fund PLC

BETWEEN:
ISLE OF MAN FINANCIAL SUPERVISION COMMISSION Claimant

And
LOUIS GROUP STRUCTURED FUND PLC Defendant

And
IN THE MATTER of the Claim Form issued on 26 March 2012

And
IN THE MATTER of the Application of LG SP Investments Ltd and Louis Group International

(Europe) Limited dated 20 April 201

And
IN THE MATTER of the Claimant’s Application dated 25 April 2012

At a Court held at Douglas
the 1% day of May 2012
His Honour the Deemster Doyle
First Deemster and Clerk of the Rolis

Upon the above matter being called this day in the presence of counsel for the Claimant and
for the Defendant AND in the presence of counsel for Robert Terence Easton, Andrew Peter
Henderson Nardone, Lynn Keig and Helen Elizabeth Edwards; Cayman National Fund
Services (Isle of Man) Limited and Cayman National Bank & Trust Company (Isle of Man)
Limited; Ian Michael Edward Bancroft; and Andrew Rouse and Lukas Nakos, AND LG SP
Investments Ltd and Louis Group International (Europe) Limited not appearing but having
filed a skeleton and other documents, (all of the aforesaid save for the Claimant and the
Defendant being referred to hereinafter as “the Noticed Parties”) AND the Court noting that
the Defendant and the Noticed Parties make no admissions as to liabifity and do not accept
the allegations made in the Claim, AND upan consideration had thereof, and for the reasons
expressed in the Judgment of the Court IT IS ORDERED THAT:

1) Gordon Wilson and Michael Simpson of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC be appointed as
joint inspectors under section 5 of the Companies Act 1974 and under section 16
(1)(a) of the Collective Investment Schemes Act 2008 to investigate the affairs of the
Defendant and report on the following questions:

a) Whether the 6 sums or groups of funds referred to in subparagraph 1(e)(i)-
(vi) below ("the 6 Sums"”) have been lent, invested, utilised, expended,
transferred, dealt with, disposed of or otherwise applied in accordance with



b)

d)

the Defendant’s Offering Document, and in particufar (but not exclusively)
Part 1 and Schedule 1 thereof, including whether they have ultimately been
so applied and whether any preceding transactions to which they have been
subject have been in accordance with the Defendant’s Offering Document,

What has become of the 6 Sums and what paths of transmission they have
followed since being lent or transferred on by the Defendant, including to and
through which accounts, persons and entities they have passed or been
transferred, by what means and when since leaving the direct possession or
control of the Defendant.

What the current location and status of the 6 Sums are, including by what or
whom, in what form and under what conditions they are held.

Whether the 6 Sums and the loans represented by them (including the initial
and subsequent loans in each case) are adequately secured in favour of the
Defendant, including whether the Defendant’s interest in them and its rights
in respect of them are adequately protected and enforceable, what security
or collateral has been provided in respect of them and whether that security
is adequate, realisable and appropriate.

The 6 Sums referred to in the preceding subparagraphs are the following 6
sums or groups of funds referred to in the Defendant’s letter to the Claimant
dated 19 August 2011 (the “19 August 2011 letter™), namely:

) Sums totalling circa £500,000, referred to in numbered paragraph 4 of
the 19 August 2011 letter.

i) Sums totalling circa £1,949,298, referred to in numbered paragraph 3
of the 19 August 2011 letter.

iii) Sums totailing circa £220,522, referred to in numbered paragraph 8 of
the 19 -August 2011 fetter.- ‘

v) Sums totalling circa £828,982, referred to in numbered paragraph 9 of
the 19 August 2011 letter.

V) Sums totalling circa £1,000,000, referred to in numbered paragraph 6
of the 19 August 2011 letter.



2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

vi) Sums totalling circa £568,870, referred to in numbered paragraph 7 of
the 19 August 2011 letter,

The said Gordon Wilson and Michael Simpson are also appointed under section 16
(1)(b} of the Collective Investment Schemes Act 2008 to investigate and report on
the affairs of the governing body, administrator and custodian of the Defendant in so

far as they relate to the matters specified in paragraph 1 above. The governing
body, administrator and custodian in question are:

a) Governing body: Includes the current and former directors of the Defendant.
b} Administrator: Cayman National Fund Services (Islte of Man) Limited.

c) Custodian: Cayman National Bank & Trust Company (Isle of Man) Limited.
The inspectors appointed under paragraphs 1 and 2 above (“the Inspectors™) shall
also report on any matter which comes to their attention during the course of the
investigations referred to in paragraphs 1 and 2 above or arising therefrom which

they consider ought to be drawn to the Court’s attention.

The Inspectors shall deliver an interim report within 1 month of their appointment
and thereafter further interim reports at regular intervals to the Court with a copy to
the Claimant.

At the conclusion of their investigation, the Inspectors shall deliver a final report to
the Court, with a copy to the Claimant.

The Court may, if it thirks fit,

a) on request and on payment of the prescribed fee, provide a copy of the said
final report to:

)] the goveming body, manager, administrator, or custodian of the
Defendant;

ii) any participant of the scheme represented by the Defendant;
ili) any other person whose conduct is referred to in the report;

b) cause the said final report to be published.



8)

9)

10)

Any applications under paragraph 6 above shall be made to the Court with not less
than 7 days’ notice to the Claimant and the Defendant and shall be heard at a time
and place to be fixed by the Court.

For the avoidance of doubt, the powers of the Inspectors include all those conferred
by section 134 of the Companies Act 1931,

a)

b)

The reference in section 134(3) to “books and documents”, in section 134(4)
to “books or documents” and in section 134(5) to “book or document”
includes all books or documents of any kind or in any form whatsoever and
inter alia the following:

i)

All accounts, deeds, writings, documents, records, notices or registers;

As well as documents in writing, any map, plan, graph or drawing,
any photograph, any disc, tape, sound track or other device in which
sounds or other data (not being visual images) are embodied so as to
be capable (with or without the aid of some other equipment) of
being reproduced therefrom, and any film, including any microfilm,
negative, tape or other device in which one or more visual images are
embodied so as to be capable (as aforesaid) of being reproduced
therefrom, and any data stored in a computer or otherwise;

Any electronic documents or data of any kind contained or stored on
any media or equipment whatsoever, including PCs, laptops,
notebooks, handheld devices, PDA devices, portable data storage
media, databases, servers, backup tapes, off-site storage or mobile
phones, and including mail files, document files, calendar files, web-
based applications, spreadsheet files and graphic and presentation
files.

The reference to “officers and agents of the company” in section 134(3)-(5)
includes any director, officer or agent of the Defendant’s govemning body,
manager, administrator or custodian.

Save as provided for in section 135(3)(a) of the Companies Act 1931, the expenses
of and incidental to the Inspectors’ investigation shall be defrayed by the Defendant.

Any balance of the expenses not defrayed by the Defendant shail be defrayed by the
Treasury.



12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

The Inspectors shall be entitled to reasonable remuneration, to be approved by the
Court. Payment of such remuneration shall be made by the Defendant as it falls
due, subject to potential future reimbursement if an Order Is made under section
135(3)(a) of the Companies Act 1931, There is liberty to apply for directions as to
the operation of this provision if a prosecution is instituted.

The Claimant has liberty to apply to lift or modify the restrictions on disclosure
imposed by paragraphs 2 to 5 of the Court’s Order of 30 March 2012 upon not less
than 14 days’ notice to the Defendant. Any such application shall be listed at a time
and date to be fixed by the Court.

The Claimant has liberty to apply to add to or modify the scope of the investigation
referred to in paragraphs 1 and 2 above and for the continuation of the appointment
of the Inspectors (or their reappointment) so as to effect any such amplified or
modified investigation. Any such application shali be made on not less than 14 days’
notice to the Defendant and (if appropriate and relevant) the Noticed Parties and
shall be heard at a time and date to be fixed by the Court

The Inspectors may apply to Court for directions or for any other reason in
connection with their office (including as to whether any particular issue or document
falls within or outside the scope of their investigation). If it Is appropriate and
relevant for notice to be given of any such application to the Defendant or any of the
Noticed Parties or any other party, such notice should (subject to any Court direction
to the contrary) be of not less than 14 days and the application shall be heard at a
time and date to be fixed by the Court. If, in respect of any such application, the
Inspectors perceive any issue as to whether notice should be given or whether it
should be given to any particular party, person or entity or any party, or what notice
should be given to any party, person or entity, they 'may (but are not required to)
refer the matter to the Court, Nothing in this paragraph shall limit the powers of the
inspectors under section 134 of the Companies Act 1931.

Liberty to apply generally.

The Defendant shall pay to the Claimant its costs of and occasioned by the Claim,
subject to detailed assessment if not agreed.

The costs of and occasioned by the Claim of the following Noticed Parties are
reserved: Robert Terence Easton, Andrew Peter Henderson Nardone, Lynn Keig and
Helen Elizabeth Edwards; Cayman National Fund Services (Isle of Man) Limited and
Cayman National Bank & Trust Company (Isle of Man) Limited; Ian Michael Edward
Bancroft; and Andrew Rouse and Lukas Nakos.



19)

c)

In relation to Claimant's Application dated 25 April 2012:

The Claimant has permission to amend the Claim Form in the form of the draft
supplied to Court.

The Claimant shall file and serve a copy of the amended Claim Form.

No order as to costs.

In refation to the Application of LG SP Investments Ltd and Louis Group International

(Europe) Limited dated 20 Aprit 2012;

a)

b)

d)

e)

LG SP Investments Ltd and Louis Group International (Europe) Limited have
permission to withdraw their said Application.

All parties (namely the Claimant, the Defendant, Robert Terence Easton, Andrew
Peter Henderson Nardone, Lynn Keig and Helen Elizabeth Edwards; Cayman National
Fund Services (Isie of Man) Limited and Cayman National Bank & Trust Company
(Isle of Man) Limited; Ian Michael Edward Bancroft; Andrew Rouse and Lukas Nakos;
LG SP Investments Ltd and Louis Group International (Europe) Limited; Alan Louis,
Andrew Bateman and Dirk Mudge) have permission to obtain a CD recording of the
hearings in this matter on 30 March 2012 and 1 May 2012.

Any application in relation to the costs of and occasioned by the Application of LG SP
Investments Ltd and Louis Group International (Europe) Limited dated 20 Aprit 2012,
together with any evidence and skeleton with authorities, shall be filed and served
within 7 days hereof.

Any party opposing any application made under the previous subparagraph shali file
and serve any evidence and skeleton with authorities, in response within 7 days after
service of the said application under the previous subparagraph.

The Court will consider and determine any application for costs under this paragraph
on paper and will notify the partles c:ﬁis deeisTon _

SEAL OF THE HIGH COURT
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Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

Introduction

On 1 May 2012, by order (“Order”) of the High Court of Justice Civil Division (the “Court”) we were appointed
as joint inspectors to investigate and report on the affairs of the Louis Group Structured Fund Ple (the
“Company”) with a specific focus on the 6 Sums (as defined in the Order). We were also to report on any other
relevant matters that we consider ought to be drawn to the Court’s attention.

In the short period since our appointment, we have familiarised ourselves with the Company’s affairs through
review of documents and through meetings with a number of parties. Our level of knowledge on the Company’s
affairs and the 6 Sums is incomplete at this time and our investigations are ongoing.

This report covers the work that we have done during the period from our appointment on 1 May 2012 to 30
May 2012, and is based on our level of knowledge as at 30 May 2012.
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Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

Background

Our investigation to date has established the following background information:

The Company was incorporated in the Isle of Man on 12 March 2007

It offered participating non voting shares to Experienced Investors with a minimum investment of
£100,000 although the Company’s board could, and did, exercise discretion to accept investments of less

than this amount.

The Company had share classes offering different investment periods and different currencies to investors
as follows:

Fund Class A B Cc D
Currency GBP UsD EUR CHF
Period 1-5 years 1-5 years 1-5 years 1-5 years

The Company’s last audited financial statements relate to the year ended 28 February 2010 and were signed
by the board of directors on 17 February 2011. The auditor’s report contained an emphasis of matter
paragraph in which the auditor highlighted significant concerns about the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern and regarding the recoverability of loans that the Company had made as well as interest

thereon.

Redemptions of the Company’s participating shares were suspended sometime between Q4 2009 and Q1
2010. The exact date of suspension is unclear from the board minutes that we have reviewed.

PwC Page 4 of 8



Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

I
Summary of activity during the
period

During the period we have:

Reviewed the hearing bundle (“Bundle”) which was provided to us by legal counsel for the Financial
Supervision Commission (“FSC”).

Prepared a structure chart from various publicly available corporate documents and from our enquiries to
date.

Retained legal counsel — Dougherty Quinn.
Met certain individuals familiar with the Company’s affairs as follows;

1) Ian Bancroft, in his capacity as a director of the Company and alsc as a representative of Cayman
National Fund Services (Isle of Man) Limited the Company’s administrator (the “Administrator”)
and Custodian.

2} Lynn Keig, in her capacity as Company Secretary and former director of the Company.
3) Lukas Nakos and Andrew Rouse in their capacities as former directors of the Company.

Written to a number of parties requesting documents of possible importance /relevance to our investigation
including;:

1) Louis Group Structured Capital Limited (“LGSC”) the Isle of Man registered loan administration
agent named in the Company’s offering document and the company to which we understand the
Company has paid the vast majority of the money invested into it by its shareholders ;

2) LG SP Investments Ltd (“LGSPI”) (formerly Louis Group International Holdings Limited) — the
BVI registered company to which we understand LGSC may have paid a substantial portion of the
monies paid to it by the Company;

3) Louis Group International (Europe) Limited (“LGIE”) — the BVI registered company which we
understand may have received certain monies from LGSPI;

4) John McCauley — based in the Isle of Man and believed by us to be a director of LGSPI and LGIE
and the custodian of both companies books and records here in the Isle of Man

5) Alan Louis - former director of the Company who is, we believe, also involved in the affairs of many
other Louis Group companies (including LGSPI, LGIE and LGSC} and whom we believe has
information and documents of relevance to our investigation.

We have reviewed the board minutes and associated papers of the Company from it’s incorporation in
March 2007 to the last documented board meeting.

We have reviewed certain of the Company’s records at the Administrator.
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Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

Findings and analysis to date

Our main findings to date and related analysis are set out below:

We have been told that there are no records at the Administrator or Custodian pertaining to the 6 Sums.
Our analysis to date and review of documentation has confirmed this.

We have been told that there is no information in the Company’s board minutes or statutory papers
pertaining to the 6 Sums. Our analysis to date and review of documentation has confirmed this.

The Company’s financial statements show that as at 28 February 2010 it had paid around £29,3m to LGSC.
As noted above, we have asked LGSC for access to its records to ascertain what happened to this money. We
have established from its annual return that LGSC is owned by LGSPI, and believe that LGSC, as the
subsidiary of an entity that we consider to be a holding company of the Company, is fully within the scope
of our appointment and investigative powers. Legal counsel for Louis Group (Isle of Man) Limited (the
registered office for LGSC) has told us that LGSC will not provide us with access to its books and records
until the matter of whether LGSPI is a holding company of the Company is determined. We have asked
them to reconsider this position, but as yet we have not had access to LGSC books and records.

We are informed that LGSC paid on to LGSPI the majority of the money paid to it by the Company and that
LGSPI may have paid some of that money, possibly including the 6 Sums, to LGIE. We are further informed
that all or substantially all of the financial records for both LGSPI and LGIE are in the Isle of Man offices of
Louis Group (Isle of Man) Limited and that Isle of Man based John McCauley (whom we understand is a
director of LGSPI and LGIE) maintains those records in and from that office.

We established that LGIE and LGSPI are recorded in the Company’s share register as each holding 50 of the
100 management (voting) shares issued by the Company and have asked both for access to their records on
the basis that we consider them to be holding companies of the Company as defined in section 1 of the 1974
Companies Act. Legal counsel for LGIE and LGSPI have disagreed with our interpretation of the 1974 Act
and claim that neither LGIE nor LGSPI is a holding company as defined therein, They have also raised the
question of jurisdiction of the Manx Court over LGIE and LGSPI affairs, because both companies are
registered in the BVI. As a result, we have not as yet had access to LGIE and LGSPI books and records.

We are in written dialogue with the legal counsel to try to resolve this matter however it may be necessary
to bring the matter before the Court for a determination if a satisfactory agreement cannot be reached. The
determination of whether LGSPI and LGIE are holding companies of the Company is significant, not only
because it brings them within the scope of our investigation, but also because LGSPI is itself a holding
company for LGSC, and other potentially significant Louis Group entities, and a determination on that
entity’s status as the Company’s holding company would bring those other entities into scope as well, and
allow us to expand our investigations in the manner which we consider necessary at this point in time.

PwC Page 6 of 8
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Other matters of significance
LGSPI Investments in the Company

We have established that LGSPT has been a substantial investor in and redeemer from the Company. In
approximate terms it has invested around £12.5m in by way of subscriptions and taken around £8.6m out by
way of redemptions from the Company between 2007 and 2009. In addition, the Company’s shareholder
records indicate that LGSPI sold/transferred a further £1.9m of its shares in the Company to Louis Group
International Nominees (Two) Limited (“LGINTwoL"), leaving it with around £om invested at the time the
Company suspended redemptions.

During that same period, LGINTwoL, a company which we understand represents the interests of Louis Group
SLN Limited ("LGSLN"} — (a company which was an unregulated feeder vehicle for the Company), invested
£11.1m and acquired the above noted shares in the Company from LGSPI.

It is unclear to us at this stage what reason LGSPI would have to invest such substantial sums into the
Company’s shares, given that these subscriptions were being paid by the Company to LGSC and then possibly
on to LGSPI (i.e. the funds appear to have ended up where they started). It is also unclear why, having made
these investments into share classes whose investment periods per the Company’s offering document were
between 1 and 5 years, LGSPI then redeemed a substantial part of the investments within a much shorter
period, nor what happened to the proceeds paid.

Uncertainty regarding LGSPI

We understand that certain of the former directors of the Company resigned due to uncertainties over the
financial affairs of LGSPI, and its use of monies originating from the Company, as far back as mid 2008.

We have established that certain members of the board of the Company had concerns regarding the credit
worthiness of LGSPI in May 2009. In particular, minutes of a Company board meeting of 29 May 2009 record a
debate related to a request from LGSPI for a loan of £1.5m from the Company. At that point in time, LGSPI had
an investment in the Company of around £2.5m and its request for a loan was eventually partially agreed by
split decision. LGSPI was apparently loaned £1.25m (not the £1.5m that it sought) of which we understand
£0.5m has since been repaid. It is clear from the minute that the Company’s directors did not have access to
information on LGSPI from which to establish whether it was a suitable credit worthy company for the

Company to lend to.

Lack of information about LGSPI is repeated as an issue in the minutes of a meeting of the Company’s board on
25 January 2010. Those minutes record that “4t some point investors would demand to know exactly what the
Junds had been used for and ... [LGSPI] would be asked to provide an analysis”, It is apparent from those
minutes that the Company’s board did not know at that time what LGSPI had used the Company’s money for,

Given that concerns about LGSPI have seemingly existed since 2008, it is of significant concern to us that

LGSPI has decided not to allow us to access it’s records in the Isle of Man by claiming that it and LGIE are not
holding companies of the Company, a narrow, and in our view wrong interpretation of the 1974 Act.

PwC Page 7 of 8
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Next report

We intend to deliver our second interim report to the Court, with a copy to the claimant, by no later than 20
July 2012 and hope at that time to have more to report in terms of findings related to the 6 Sums, as well as
other pertinent matters.

This report has been prepared for and only for the High Court of Justice of the Isle of Man pursuant to the Order of 1 May 2012 and for
no other purpose. We do not accept or assume any liability or duty of care  for any other purpose or fo any other person fo whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

© 2012 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC. All rights reserved. 'PricewaterhouseCoopers' refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC (a limited
liability eompany in the Isle of Man) or, as the context requires, other member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited,
each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.

PwC Page 8 of 8
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Introduction

On 1 May 2012, by order (“Order”) of the High Court of Justice Civil Division (the “Court”) we were appointed
as joint inspectors to investigate and report on the affairs of the Louis Group Structured Fund Ple (the
“Company”) with a specific focus on the 6 Sums (as defined in the Order). We were also to report on any other
relevant matters that we consider ought to be drawn to the Court’s attention. This second interim report follows
on from our First Interim Report to the Court which was submitted on 1 June 2012 and covers the work we have
done since 1 June 2012. The second interim report is based on our level of knowledge as at 16 July 2012 and
uses the same terms for the various entities as defined in the First Interim Report as follows.

Entity Term

Louis Group Structured Fund Ple ‘The Company’
Cayman National Fund Services Limited ‘The Administrator’
Louis Group Structured Capital Limited ‘LGSC

LG SP Investments Ltd (formerly Louis Group International Holdings ‘LGSPI’

Limited)

Louis Group International Europe Limited ‘LGIE

Louis Group International Nominees (Two) Limited ‘LGINTwoL.

Louis Group SLN Limited ‘LGSLN’

Louis Group (Isle of Man) Limited ‘LGIOM’
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Summary of our activity during the period

We explained in our First Interim Report that we had established that much of the information and
documentation relevant to our investigations belonged to LGSC, LGSPI and LGIE. Shortly after our
appointment we wrote to these parties requesting access to their records and at the time of writing the First
Interim Report we were in dialogue regarding obtaining the access we required.

Since then we have engaged in further correspondence with legal counsel for LGSPI, LGIE and LGSC but
without any documentation or access being provided despite mention of voluntary disclosure.

We completed our initial review and analysis of the Company’s records at the Administrator, with a particular
emphasis on shareholder records and bank statements.

We met with the Company’s auditor, Grant Thornton, to discuss our investigation and to request access to
relevant information.

We received bank account statements from RBSI containing all bank account transactions since account
inception for the following entities — LGSPI, LGIE, LGSC and LGSLN and we used specialist technology to
transfer the transaction data from the RBSI bank statements into Excel spreadsheets and then carried out an
analysis to understand the activity in those accounts and to identify in particular, transactions pertinent to the 6

Sums.
We analysed the IOM Companies Registry to identify possible Louis entities.

We met with the Financial Supervision Commission to clarify certain of our findings and we have prepared this
second interim report.
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Overview of “Holding Company” disagreement and
its ongoing impact on our work

In our First Interim Report, we explained that LGSPI and LGIE are each recorded in the Company’s
shareholder register as holding 50 of its 100 voting shares in issue. Our analysis, and advice, is that both these
entities fall within the definition of holding companies in the 1974 Companies Act (“1974 Act”) and that as joint
inspectors into the affairs of the Company, we have the necessary power to request and examine documents and

records belonging to each.

We saw it as being essential to our investigation into the 6 Sums and related matters that we were afforded
access to the LGSPI and LGIE records given the explanations that have been provided to the FSC and the Court

so far.

Unfortunately, both entities have claimed, through their legal counse, that they are not holding companies of
the Company and the resultant disagreement between ourselves and LGSPI and LGIE on this holding company

point has created a significant impediment.

As of the date of this report, neither LGSPI nor LGIE has provided us with access to their books and records and
in addition, they have reserved their position on the matter of jurisdiction of the Isle of Man Court on the basis
that both are registered in the British Virgin Islands.

Related to this disagreement is the position of LGSC, a company which we understand is a subsidiary of LGSPI,
and as such, we believe it is within the scope of our investigation pursuant to the subsidiary of holding company
definition in the 1974 Act. LGSC, the main recipient of money from the Company, has, through its legal counsel,
told us that until the issue of whether LGSPI is a holding company of the Company is resolved, its Board has
been instructed by LGSPI not to produce any LGSC documentation pursuant to our requests.

LGSC has also instructed its auditor not to permit us to access their files pertaining to its audit. In addition,
LGSC has instructed that a representative of the auditor must be present during any review that we carry out of
the audit files of the Company, in case there is information in the Company’s audit files that relates to LGSC. In
light of this restriction, we have not as yet carried out any review of the Company’s audit files.

Counsel for LGSPI and LGIE expressed concern that our requests were too wide in scope, and in response to
those concerns, whilst at the same time reserving our position, we amended our initia] request for information
to make it more specific to the 6 Sums. (See Appendix 1). In addition, in that second request, we asked LGSPI to
give written permission to the board of LGSC and to Grant Thornton, to cooperate with our requests,

Counsel for LGSPI and LGIE responded stating that they would consider our narrowed request within 7 days
from 26 June 2012 but that they would not write the letters of permission that we sought. We told them that we
intended to report to the Court on or before 20 July 2012 and they have subsequently indicated that the
information will be produced voluntarily during the week of 16 July 2012 (see appendix 2),

In our First Interim Report we highlighted our concerns about the ongoing reluctance of LGSPI and LGIE to
allow us to access their records to allow us to carry out our investigation. In particular, we reported that certain
former directors had resigned in 2008 because of uncertainties about the financial affairs of LGSPI and that the
Company’s board had expressed concerns about LGSPI as far back as January 2010. The FSC told us that their
concerns started in the Autumn of 2010 following information received from the Company’s board, and that
despite numerous correspondence and questions, no satisfactory answer had been received.
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This situation, the FSC explained, ultimately lead to our appointment and reflected the serious nature of the
concerns held by both the Company and the FSC over the financial affairs of LGSPI and LGIE. In light of all of
this history, we found it surprising and disappointing that LGIE and LGSPI have continued to resist our recent
enquiries into their affairs.

Recognising that not accessing the documents belonging to LGSPI, LGSC and LGIE was having an adverse
impact on our work, we considered an application for a determination of the holding company point by the
Court. However, the situation changed when we received a response from Royal Bank of Scotland International
(“RBSI") to our request for information. The statements that they have provided give us answers to many of the
questions that we had, and in the remainder of this report, we set out our findings.
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Analysis and Findings
Request to and response from RBSI

Our initial request to RBSI followed from our review of the records of the Company held at the Administrator
which showed that monies paid by the Company to LGSC were sent to an account at RBSI Isle of Man.

We explained in writing to RBSI that we considered the affairs of LGSC, LGIE, LGSPI and LGSLN to be within
the scope of our investigation and provided them with a copy of the Order, as well as copies of the various
shareholder records establishing our position. We also explained to RBSI that LGSPI and LGIE disagreed with
our interpretation of the 1974 Act and claimed not to be holding companies.

RBSI considered our request, decided to comply with it and provided us with copy statements, A4 size, of the
account activity since inception of the accounts held by them for LGSPI, LGSC, LGIE and LGSLN. These
statements showed that there were multi currency accounts as follows:

Entity Account Number Currency Balance at 31/05/2012
LGSPI 5880-58316250 GBP £10.35
EUR €1.29
UsD $2.67
CHF SFri12.36
NZD $0.09
AUD $15.01
ZAR R26.76
LGSC 5880-58345463 GBP £22.423.98
EUR €624.49
USD $328.46
LGIE 5880-10128444 GBP £16.03
EUR €0.00
UsSDh $11.28
ZAR Ro.35
AUD $0.00
CHF SFr.0.c0
LG SLN 5880-58431807 GBP £638.96
EUR €1.17
USD $o
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Data Capture
In total there were well in excess of 1,200 statement pages containing information on thousands of transactions.

We scanned these statements into PDF format and used specialist software to convert certain of the scanned
data (that pertaining to LGSPI and LGSC) to an excel format. We reviewed the captured transaction data in
excel and reconciled it to confirm that it had been captured correctly. We then categorised the transaction data
using the narrative contained in the statements into a number of headings for analysis purposes.

In the time available, and acknowledging the imperative to restrict our interest to the 6 Sums and any other
pertinent information, we have not carried out an exhaustive analysis, e.g. we have not sought third party
confirmation that the narrative shown in the statements is reflective of the transactions in question. However,
we have carried out some checks on transfers between the various entity accounts and the results of these
checks indicates to us that the narrative captured from the statements, and our resultant analysis, is a reliable
basis upon which to draw the conclusions that we set out later in this report.

We decided not to carry out any data capture on the LGIE statements because our cursory review found that the
majority of transactions in those accounts pre-dated the formation of the Company. However we make
comment on the activity in those accounts in this report where relevant.

It should be appreciated that, at the time of writing this Second Interim Report, we believe that neither the
Company, LGSC, LGSLN, LGIE nor LGSPI are aware that RBST has provided us with these statements or that

we have carried out any analysis.
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|
Structure diagram

The diagram below shows the overall structure in so far as we have been able to determine to date together with
the approximate net flows of funds in the structure based on our financial analysis.

LGSLN
Raised c£10m (net) | non Louis investors Louis investors
and invested into the
Company through Invested c£12.2m (net) Invested c£3.7m (net)
LGINTwoL into shares in the into shares in the
Company Company
LGINTwolL J’ /
.
Invested 4
cf1om (net) | Company
in shares in "
the Company Total invested (net)
for LGSLN c£25.9m. Transferred
cf25m (net) to LGSC —
r ¥
LGSC |
. . LGSPI
Received c£25m from
the Company (net) and / F£1-9m( net_)
paid that to LGSPI - / Ivestment into
(See full analysisin | / the Company
‘ Appendix 3) |/ .
o | Subscriptions
f cf12.5m
| Redemption
R . | c£8.7m
Transfers to
LGSPI
GS LGSLN cf1.9m
Received c£25m from
LGSC (net)
Paid c£25m (net) to
various entities and
people — (see analysis
| in appendix 4)

Denotes a flow of funds (on a net basis)

v

Louis investors — means companies that we have identified in the shareholder records of the Company that we
believe are Louis related entities. There are 135 Isle of Man registered entities which we believe are Louis
related. A listing of such entities is provided in appendix 7. Not all are, or were invested into the Company.
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Non Louis investors — means other investors where we have not established any apparent connection to Louis
and which we currently believe to be third party investors into the Company.

LGSLN — means a private investment vehicle, shares and/or loan notes in which we understand were offered to
certain individuals in the Isle of Man and elsewhere. We believe there could be over 100 investors in LGSLN.
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LGSC
We found that LGSC has three accounts at RBS], comprising a GBP, USD and EUR account.

Our analysis of the transactions through these accounts is contained in Appendix 3.

In summary we found that the activity in the LGSC accounts is consistent with the explanations provided to us
by the directors of the Company about their knowledge of the operation of the LGSC,

Specifically, we have identified net receipts from the Company into each of the 3 LGSC bank accounts
amounting to £23,128,433, $2,273,213 and €580,317 respectively, and have confirmed that these figures
broadly reconcile with the net payments to LGSC recorded in the books of the Company.

We have established that funds comprising on a net basis £23,599,343, $2,269,648 and €45,408 have been
paid by LGSC to LGSPI (LGSPI on our schedule — note the difference between the £ and € payments is largely
due to cross-currency FX transactions).

We found that there is a small amount of other activity in the LGSC accounts, particularly in the GBP account
comprising receipts amounting to just over £1.3m in aggregate. We don’t as yet know what the source of these
receipts has been. We have been able to identify payments out of a similar amount, £1.3m, the vast majority of
which (around £1.15m) appears to have been paid away in commissions. We found that the main recipient of
the commissions was Louis Group (Isle of Man) Limited, and that in aggregate it was paid £582,689. Other
Louis entities appear to have received commissions totalling just over £270k.

The closing balances on the LGSC accounts are shown in the table of bank account balances earlier in this
report.

Based on our analysis, we have determined that almost all of the money transferred into LGSC from the
Company was onward transferred to LGSPL

The 6 Sums

The total of the 6 Sums as listed in the Order is £5,067,672, and according to representations made to the FSC
prior to our appointment, these were all paid through LGIE. Our analysis of the transactions in the LGSPI
account involving LGIE is in appendix 4, and as discussed in more detail later in this report, our analysis shows
that the net flow of funds from LGSPI to LGIE was around £3.3m in total, an apparent shortfall of £1.77m
compared to those prior representations. The largest transfers from LGSPI to LGIE are set out in appendix 8.

We don’t know why there is an apparent shortfall, however we have reviewed documents from the hearing
bundles pertaining to the 6 Sums and compared the explanations provided to the data we gathered from our
analysis of account activity.

We have also received correspondence from the legal representatives of LGSPI and LGIE stating that the 6
sums concerned are secured by way of an equitable mortgage of shares in Louis Group (SA) Limited (“LGSA™).
We have been provided with a representation about the balance sheet size of LGSA purportedly by the South
African accounting firm Mazars. We have not seen or been provided with any security documentation, and
cannot therefore comment on whether the 6 Sums are secured by these LGSA shares, or whether the security is

adequate.

We comment on our findings regarding the 6 Sums as follows:



Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

Transaction i) circa £500k LGIOM

a) Investedin LGIOM is, we understand, a licensed trust and corporate service provider in the Isle of
accordan.ce with | Man. Although we have had no access to any of its books and records in connection
the Offering with our work to date, we consider it unlikely that LGIOM is either a landlord or
Document? developer of property.

b) What has The supporting documents provided in relation to this amount comprise an extract
become of the from the LGIOM (or as it then was Louis Group International Trustees Limited)
sum and what financial statements for the financial year ended 31 January 2004. This extract
were the paths of | contained narrative related to a “loan” from LGIE to LGIOM of £502,415.
transmission?

We have been unable to identify these payments from our review of the bank
statements of LGIE.

In our review of LGSPI bank statements we found numerous transactions involving
LGSPI and LGIOM dating from 2007. We estimate that in total c£8.5m was paid to
LGIOM by LGSPI and c£7.1m was received by LGSPI from LGIOM.

It is not possible to determine whether any of these payments relate to this specific
sum.

c) Currentlocation | Unknown - We understand from review of the bundle that the FSC consented to the
of the sum? write off of this loan in the books of LGIOM based on assurances that it now considers

to have been “false and misleading”.

d) Arethe Unknown
sums/loans
adequately
secured in
favour of LGSF?

Transaction ii) circa £1,949,298 Louis Asset Management

a) Investedin We currently have no information regarding the Alan Louis Family Trust (“ALFT™),
accordance with | Louis Asset Management (“LAM”), AL Holdings ("ALH”) and BL Holdings (‘BLH")
the Offering upon which to make any assessment.

Document?

b) What has We have identified a number of transactions involving LGSPI, LAM, ALH and BLH
become of the involving millions of Swiss Francs and hundreds of thousands of pounds. Monies have
sum and what moved to and from LGSPI and these entities and far as we can currently ascertain at
were the paths of | {hig time, the net balance is nominal.
transmission?

¢) Current location | Unknown
of the sum?

d) Arethe Unknown
sums/loans
adequately
secured in
favour of LGSF?

10
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Transaction iii) circa £220,522 Nils Hinrichsen

a)

Invested in
accordance with
the Offering
Document?

Nils Hinrichsen is listed on the Louis Group website as being their MD Property
Brokerage SA. We consider it to be highly unlikely that he is an approved party per the
Company offering document.

b)

What has
become of the
sum and what
were the paths of
transmission?

Our review of the LGSPI's EUR account has highlighted a payment of €256,433.62 to
Nils Hinrichsen on 29 February 2008.

c)

Current location
of the sum?

Unknown

d)

Are the
sums/loans
adequately
secured in
favour of LGSF?

Unknown

Transaction iv) circa £828,982 Nils Hinrichsen

a) Invested in Nils Hinrichsen is listed on the Louis Group website as being their MD Property
accordance with | Brokerage SA, We consider it to be highly unlikely that he is an approved party per the
the Offering Company offering document,

Document?

b) What has Our review of LGSPI's GBP account has highlighted payments to Nils Hinrichsen of
become of the £500k and £28k on 27 March 2008 and payments of £425k and £247k on 4 March
sum and what 2008 and 29 February 2008 respectively.
were the paths of
transmission?

¢) Currentlocation | Unknown
of the sum?

d) Arethe Unknown
sums/loans
adequately
secured in

favour of LGSF?

11
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Transaction v) circa £1,000,000 Investiment LGUK

a)

Invested in
accordance with
the Offering
Document?

We have obtained publicly available financial statements for Louis Group UK Limited
(“LGUK”) for the year ended 28 February 2011 which state that the principal activity of
it, and its subsidiary company Louis Group Land Investments Limited, is property
investment,

These financial statements record that LGIE has advanced LGUK a loan of £133,381
and invested £1,000,000 in LGUK’s share capital. LGIE is recorded as being LGUK's
sole shareholder.

The £1,000,000 is an investment into equity rather than a loan and is therefore hot
permissible, per the Company’s offer document.

Whilst the loan for £133,381 may have been a permissible loan were it to have been
made by or assigned to LGSC, because prima facie LGUK looks to be a landlord (ie an
approved party). However the LGUK financial statements record that the loan is from
LGIE, not LGSC and we have not been able to determine whether LGIE falls within the
definition of approved party, therefore we cannot determine whether this £133,381isa
permissible use in the context of the Company’s offer document.

b)

What has
become of the
sum and what

We identified a number of transactions between LGSPI and LGUK (formerly known as
Louis Group International (UK) Limited) amounting to approximately £5.1m in
aggregate but leaving an almost neutral balance.

were the paths of
transmission? We have also identified a number of transactions between LGIE and LGUK dating from
2003 through February 2007 (i.e. before the creation of the Company) which in
aggregate show that LGUK received over £1.5m (net) from LGIE during that period.
c) Current location | LGUK’s financial statements show that it (and/or its subsidiary) owns property in the
of the sum? UK with a value of £9m (including an upward revaluation reserve of £0.8m) with
associated secured liabilities to its bank(s) of £8.gm.
We also noted that as well as first charges over the various properties, the LGUK bank
loans are reportedly further secured by a guarantee from LGSPI for £1m.
The bank loans are recorded as being repayable as follows:
£1.13m in August 2013
£0.2m in quarterly instalments of £8,900
£2.87m over 20 years
£3.2m in March 2013
d) Arethe Unlikely given that there is no mention of such security in LGUK financial statements
sums/loans and given that reported net assets of LGUK are around £200k.
adequately
secured in
favour of LGSF?

12
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Transaction vi) circa £568,870 Le Platine Fondation

a) Invested in _ We found that Le Platine Fondation (“LPF”) was an IOM company with the company
accordan_ce with | number 106196C which was recorded in the Isle of Man company register as being
the Offering dissolved on 14 March 2011,
Document?
b) What has We found that LPF had received £175k from LGSPI from 2007 to 20009.
become of the
sum and what We found that LPF had received approximately £230k from LGIE between Feb 2006
were the paths of | and Feb 2007.
transmission?
We do not know what LPF did with these monies.
¢} Current location | Unknown — but LPF is now dissolved.
of the sum?
d) Arethe Unlikely given that LPF is now dissolved.
sums/loans
adequately
secured in
favour of LGSF?

13



Louis Group Structured Fund Pic

LGSPI

In addition to the 6 Sums, we are to report on “any matter * which comes to our attention during the
investigation which we consider ought to be brought to the Court’s attention. Our analysis of LGSPI's bank
activity caused us to identify areas of concern which we consider to be relevant and which we describe in more

detail below.
Activity in the accounts of LGSPI

We established that between the first transactions in November 2006 and the present day, the LGSPI accounts
have seen significant levels of activity:

e The GBP account has had over 3,000 transactions totalling over £126m in deposits and withdrawals
leaving a balance at the date of this report of £10.

» The EUR account has had over 1,000 transactions totalling over €29m in deposits and withdrawals
leaving a balance at the date of this report of €1.

e The CHF account has had over 300 transactions totalling over CHF18m in deposits and withdrawals
leaving a balance at the date of this report of CHF2.

Our analysis of this account activity, based on our capture of statement data, is set out in Appendix 4.

In summary we found that:

 there was a circular pattern of money flow, involving LGSPI investing money into the Company, which
in turn transferred the money to LGSC, which in turn transferred money back to LGSPI from where it
was seemingly used for a variety of purposes. This pattern was reversed as shares were redeemed by
LGSPI and money flowed back the same way that it arrived

 transactions have been carried out through the LGSPI bank accounts pertaining to over 60 different
entities involving substantial co-mingling of funds

o there were various payments to and from persons connected to the Louis organisation

* anextra-ordinary loan from the Company to LGSPI discussed at length by the directors of the Company
was seemingly used to repay principal and interest to another entity called Montpellier and to finance a
payment to LGIOM

= there were numerous transactions with a reference “PICS” seemingly involving individuals whereby
money was received by and paid by LGSPI and again funds were seemingly co mingled

+ the transactions were often recorded as representing loan capital, loan repayment, interest paid and
interest received.

Circularity of Investment

In our First Interim Report we highlighted that we were unclear why LGSPI was invested into the Company as
we had come to understand that the money invested was being lent by the Company to LGSC and then on to
LGSPI. We observed in our First Interim Report that if this was indeed the flow of funds, then there was a lack
of obvious commercial purpose as the money was effectively ending up where it started.

Our subsequent analysis of the LGSPI statements has uncovered numerous examples of this circular investing
activity, two of which are described below:

* On 3 September 2007, LGSPI invested £350,000 into the Company. These monies returned back to
LGSPI on the following day, having first passed through the Company and LGSC. The monies were
then used by LGSPI to lend to various parties, pay salaries, and paid away as apparent interest
payments in relation to a “PICS” scheme. The source of the £350,000 appears to be a £265,839.59
transfer from the LGSPI Australian Dollar (AUD) account and a £90,000 transfer from LGIOM.
Review of the LGSPI AUD account shows a receipt for AUD$838,000 on 30 August 2007 reference
“JNA Holdings PICS INV”, the majority of which (AUD$654,360) was transferred into £265,839.59 by
way of an FX transaction on 31 August 2007. Review of the LGSPI account shows that £180,000 had
been paid to LGIOM by LGSPI on 17 August 2007 related to an earlier receipt by LGSPI from LGSC of
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£180,000 (which was itself sourced from the Company) and that the £90,000 from LGIOM was
seemingly a partial return of some of that earlier money, (see copy statements in Appendix 5)

¢  On 1 February 2008, LGSPI invested a further £1,554,000 into the Company. These monies were
returned that same day to LGSPI via the Company and LGSC in three transfers of £500,000. In this
instance, the funds were not immediately transferred out from LGSPI, rather they were placed on
deposit for a few weeks, before being paid to various other Louis entities. The source of the £1,554,000
appears to be a £1,317,000 deposit on 31 January 2008 reference Katberg Trust PICS, a £50,000
deposit on 31 January 2008 reference Morris DV & C PICS and a £100,000 deposit on 1 February 2008
reference “Loan Silver Star” (see copy statements in Appendix 6)

In total, LGSPI invested over £12.4m into the Company’s shares, with the vast majority of that investment
ending up straight back in LGSPI's bank account, often on the same day, having passed through the accounts of
the Company and LGSC. In total LGSPI redeemed over £8.9m from the Company and sold a further £1.9m of
its Company shares to LGSLN, with funds originating from and/or ending up back at LGSPI.

We see no obvious commercial purpose for such a flow of monies, given that that the outcome was to
temporarily increase the number of shares in issue at the Company and thereby make it look bigger in financial
terms. The subsequent withdrawal by LGSPI via redemptions and transfers from share classes which were,
according to the offer document locked for periods of 1 to 5 years, simply served to move the funds back where

they started.

Because this activity in all likelihood made the Company appear more attractive to outside investors (albeit
temporarily) it is likely that it contributed to attracting some or all of the investment inflow into the Company
from the non Louis investors and from LGSLN.

Page 11 of the Company’s Offer Document describes the situation between the Company and LGSPI as follows:

“To help achieve [the Company’s] objectives, the Directors have secured the active involvement of [LGSPI] in
the [Company] as a Participating Shareholder. LGSPI intends to manage its investment in the [Company]in
order to sustain the level of funding that the Directors wish to make available to [LGSC)”

and:

“If the requests from [LGSC] ... exceed the amount ... from members of the general public, the Directors can
call upon the commitment of [LGSPI] as described above, to meet such level of lending as the Directors may,
Jrom time to time, agree”

These representations in the Company’s offering document are in our view designed to give assurance to
prospective external investors that LGSPI will co-invest in the Company and that it has given a “commitment”
to augment the amount invested by the “general public” as necessary.

Our analysis of bank transactions has established that the money invested by LGSPI in the Company simply
circled round through the Company and LGSC and back to LGSPI.

It is therefore our view that the offering document misrepresented the situation to prospective investors.
LGSPI was not de facto a co-investor, rather it was circling money that it had obtained from other parties
through the Company to give the appearance that it was a co-investor.

This activity may well also constitute improper financial assistance for the acquisition of shares,
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Co-mingling of funds in LGSPI

Having observed this circular pattern of investment transactions involving LGSPI, the Company and LGSC, our
attention was drawn to what appeared to be systematic co-mingling of funds in the LGSPI accounts,

Specifically, our analysis found well over 100 different sources of deposit into and well over 100 different
recipients of payments from the LGSPI accounts. As noted earlier, the aggregate amounts deposited and paid
away are into the hundreds of millions of pounds.

The following series of transactions are typical of the co-mingling activity that we have observed:

On 17 August 2007, Louis Group Properties (Germany) Limited (“LGPGL”) subscribed €500k into share class
C1 (the Euro denominated 1 year share class) of the Company. €475k of these monies were transferred to LGSC
on that same day and then on to LGSPI.

Once in LGSPI's account, these funds were used as follows:

1) Approximately €120k in aggregate was transferred to the following Louis entities — LG Investco Pink,

LG Properties Protea and LG Properties Agate,
2) Approximately €300k was transferred to the LGSPI GBP account, where a payment was made with the

reference Redemptions PICs “Buckingham”.

Three months later, LGPGL submitted a redemption request to the Company and notwithstanding it having
subscribed into a 1 year duration share class, the Company waived early redemption penalties and processed
the redemption. On 29 November 2007, LGSPI received a deposit of £500k from Silver Star Estates Limited,
an Isle of Man company operated by Louis which we understand is invested into property in Snugborough
Estate. These funds were transferred to the LGSPI EUR account and an amount of €475k was paid to LGSC.
LGSC then transferred the €475k to the Company and LGPG’s redemption from the Company, €500k, was
paid.

This is typical of the sort of activity that we found occurring in the bank accounts of LGSPI and shows that
monies from multiple sources were being deposited, co-mingled and paid on.

In relation to the above noted payments made by LGSPI to each of LG Investeo Pink, LG Properties Protea and
LG Properties Agate we established that each of these entities had carried out other transactions through the
LGSPI account which in aggregate we calculated as follows:

Entity Total Paid to entity by LGSPI | Total Paid by entity to LGSPI | Net Balance
Pink €2,980,870 €1,583,500 €1,397,370 DR
Protea €107,215 Nil €107,215 DR
Agate €740,900 €642,426 €98,474 DR

With reference to the above noted payment to Buckingham, we found numerous transactions with the reference
PICs and Buckingham, in and out of the LGSPI account.

In total, we found that there were net balances owing either to or from over 60 different Louis related entities
arising from activity through the LGSPI accounts. In addition, we found hundreds of other PICS referenced
transactions, related to people and/or trusts. We think that PICS stands for “Private Investment Capital
Subscription”, a term used for small private investment transactions, particularly involving real estate whereby
individual subscribers invest a fixed amount and are returned their capital and an additional return or interest.
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Is LGSFI an approved party?

Whilst it is possible that each of these three entities, Pink, Protea and Agate, as well as the numerous other
entities that we have identified as transacting through LGSPI may well be or have been engaged in some form of
property development or property investing activity, the question we have been asked to consider in the Order
is whether LGSPI is itself an approved party to receive money from the Company (via LGSC) in the context of
the Company’s offer document.

The Company’s offering document defines an approved party as:

“a landlord or developer of Approved Real Estate who is not a US Person and approved by the [Company’s]
Board and may include an associated company or connected business of [LGSPI]” (definitions page 6)

Approved Real Estate is defined as:

“.. commercial, industrial, retail or residential property, other than real estate in the United States, that is
tenanted or for which planning permission has been granted for such property and for which suitable
security has been offered and accepted by [LGSC]” (definitions page 6)

Finally:

The Company’s “..Structured Funding Model .. is an operational model that aims to provide competitive
Junding by way of loans, not exceeding a term of 60 months, through [LGSC] to .. Approved Parties .. of ..
Approved Real Estate..” (our emphasis)

Significantly, the Company’s offering document does not include or refer to LGSPI as being an Approved Party.
This omission surprised us given our findings that almost all of the money transferred by the Company to LGSC
was subsequently transferred on to LGSPI.

We asked Lynn Keig, the Company Secretary and a former Director of the Company and LGSC, about LGSPI]
and she told us:

“.. virtually all monies received by LGSC from [the Company] [were] lent to {LGSPI]. From (sic) LGSC
perspective, LGIH was an approved party, being both a property developer and landlord, and since this was
its only business, the loans were for approved purposes ..”
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Our conclusions regarding LGSPI

Having reviewed the bank statements and observed the pattern of transactions being carried out in the accounts
of LGSPI, we do not consider that LGSPI is an approved party as defined in the Company’s offering document.

We have considered the possibility that the LGSPI accounts might be designated client monies accounts,
however we confirmed with RBSI that the LGSPI accounts were not designated client monies accounts.

We then considered the possibility that LGSPI has been acting as a deposit taker without the necessary license.

We believe that on the balance of probabilities, LGSPI has been engaged in deposit taking business without the
necessary license and our reasoning is as follows:

¢ Qur analysis covers every transaction through the LGSPI RBSI accounts since inception, information
which LGSPI:
o has not voluntarily provided since concerns were first raised by the Company in 2010 and
o has continued to frustrate our efforts to obtain directly
*  We have seen no activity in those accounts that indicates that LGSPI has ever acquired or developed
any real estate, rather what we have established is that LGSPI has acted as a conduit for receipts and
payments pertaining to the affairs of over 60 different Louis related entities and numerous pecple and
private investing vehicles
*  The receipts of monies by LGSPI from other entities and people are entirely consistent with the deposit
of monies into a bank
* LGSPI has used money received by it to make payments described as loans to others
e  Although many of the entities who have dealt with LGSPI have their registered office address at
LGIOM, we think it unlikely that they are “group” entities as defined in section 1(f) of the Regulated
Activities Order 2011 (“the RAO2011") as we believe that the economic interest in these entities most
likely rests with outside investors, rather than with the Louis organisation, and we think it unlikely that
the common control test is passed.

The “group” exclusion within section 1(f) of the RAO2011 applies when the person paying the money and
receiving the money are either a) in the same group; or b) controlled by the same person.

a) Inthe same group?

Our analysis of LGSPI’s bank accounts found that there are numerous payments to and from various entities,
some of which we believe to be property companies or syndicates promoted by the Louis organisation and
others involving deposits from and payments to numerous different people and entities with the reference

“PICS”.

Whilst it is possible that some entities from which LGSPI has received, and to which it has on paid monies, are
within the same “group” as LGSPI (as defined in RAO2011), we think it to be very unlikely that every counter-
party dealing with LGSPI can be so classified, and as a result we do not believe that the group exemption
requirements have been met,

b) Controlled by the same person?

We have not had access to information which would allow us to definitively conclude whether or not the same
person has control of all the parties with which LGSPI has transacted. Ifit is argned that there is common
control, then in our view, there are serious questions to be answered of the controlling person(s) given the
apparent current financial situation of LGSPI.

However, based on our analysis, and on the balance of probabilities, we think it unlikely that the common
control requirement for the group exemption has been met.
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LGSPI’s place of business

We believe that LGSPT’s business has been carried out from the Louis office in the Isle of Man. We established
during our meetings with former directors of the Company that the books and records of LGSPI are currently
maintained and kept by an LGSPI Director, John McCauley, in the Louis Building at 29 Bucks Road, Douglas.
We also found that LGSPI is registered as a foreign company on the Isle of Man F Register as having its place of
business in the Louis Building,

Investment Business

We have considered whether LGSPI has been engaged in investment business, again without the necessary
licence,

Our analysis indicates that it has been central to the flow of monies to and from a number of different entities,
The pattern of transactions indicates that LGSPI may have been engaged in arranging deals in investments
and/or managing investments belonging to these entities and therefore it is possible that LGSPI has been
improperly engaged in investment business.

Other Matters of Concern re LGSPI

We have identified net payments out of the LGSPI bank account to various individuals involved in the affairs of
the Louis organisation as follows:

Alan Louis net paid out e£1.4m
Nils Hinrichsen net paid out c£1.4m
Lukas Nakos net paid out c£220k
Paul Flude net paid out c£9ok

We have also identified payments by LGSPI to an entity called the Renewal Church, totalling some £84k, and
made in 12 monthly payments of £7k over the period September 2008 to July 2009. Our enquiries established
that there is an organisation called the Renewal Church in Stratford-Upon-Avon, the town in which Alan Louis
has a house in the UK. We found disclosures on the Louis website that it runs its affairs to Christian values and
it is possible that these payments are some form of donation to that church, If this is the case, we consider this
to be another matter of concern,
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Inability to pay debts

The principal reason given to us by the Company’s directors for the suspension of redemptions of the
Company’s shares is their concern about the recoverability of monies which had been “loaned” by the Company
to LGSC and on to LGSPL.

Given our findings that that LGSPI, a recipient (via LGSC) of £25m of the Company’s assets, has less than £100
remaining in the RBSI accounts and that it has most likely been engaged in unlicensed deposit taking, we
consider these concerns to be entirely valid.

We consider it highly likely, based on our analysis, that LGSPI is unable to pay its debts as they fall due, that it
has been in such a position for some time, and that it falls within the statutory definition of being insolvent.

This being the case, and having established that LGSC’s main asset is a loan to LGSPI, we believe that LGSC is
most likely also unable to pay its debts as they fall due and insolvent.

We have previously explained that the Company’s main asset is its loan to LGSC, which, including accrued
interest, stands at just over £29m in the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2011

(which are attached in Appendix 9).

Those financial statements also record that the Company has unpaid share redemptions payable totalling
£1,571,383 (see note 5 on page 14). Based on our analysis of the financial situation of LGSC and LGSPI, we
consider it to be likely that the Company is insolvent and unable to pay its debts.

Finally, earlier in this report we briefly mentioned LGSLN, a feeder entity, which has invested around £1om
into the Company. We do not know very much about LGSLN, other than it has around £630 left in its RBSI
bank account and that it could have around 100 investors. We believe that LGSLN offered loans as opposed to
participating shares to its investors and that being the case, it is entirely likely that LGSLN is also insolvent and

unable to pay its debts.
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LGSPI’s Principals

Our various meetings and our review of the Company’s files indicate that the following individuals have been or

are directors of LGSPI.

Former Directors

Lukas Nakos Resigned 18 June 2008

Dirk Mudge Resigned 31 July 2008

Lynn Keig Resigned 31 July 2008

Paul Flude Appointed 31 July 2008 — resignation date unknown

Georg Beckert Appointed 31 July 2008 - resignation date unknown

Alan Louis Refer below

Current Directors

John McCauley Appointment date unknown

Alan Louis We have been informed that the FSC have requested that Alan Louis rejoin

the board of directors.
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Summary and Interim Conclusions

We have carried out an extensive analysis in a very short space of time to try to understand, and report on, a
highly complex investment structure.

It is apparent that the information that we have obtained has been sought by a number of parties invoived in
the Company’s affairs over a number of years and that hitherto it has been withheld by LGSPI and LGIE. They
have continued to stall and resist our enquiries, conduct that is entirely consistent with their approach to date.

Our analysis of the activity in the accounts of LSGP] has lead us to conclude that it is not an approved party (as
per the Company’s offering document) rather, we believe that it has been engaged in deposit taking activity and
possibly also investment business, without the necessary license(s) from the FSC.

Our analysis has led us to conclude that the Company, LGSC, LGSPI and LGSLN are unable to pay their debts
as they fall due and that they all fall within the statutory definition of being insolvent.

We appreciate that these interim conclusions have serious implications, not only for the investors in the
Company, but also for the various parties involved in the Company’s affairs and the entities with which LGSPI

has transacted.

We intend to meet with the FSC once they have considered this report to discuss these findings and to help
them where needed in their decision making on the next steps. We will prepare another report to the Court in
early September, unless there is reason to report sooner.

This report has been prepared for and only for the High Court of Justice of the Isle of Man pursuant to the Order of 1 May 2012 and  for
no other purpose. We do not accept or assume any liability or duty of care for any other Dpurpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

© 2012 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC. All rights reserved. 'PricewaterhouseCoopers' refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC (a limited
liability company in the Isle of Man) or, as the context requires, other member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited,

each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.
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pwc

Ms Jacqui Owens

Simcocks Advocates Limited
Ridgeway House

Ridgeway Street

Douglas

Isle of Man

IMg9 1PY

Email: jowens@simeocks.com

14 June 2012
Reference: LO004/RC/lh

Dear Ms Owens

Louis Group Structured Fund Plc (the “Fund”)

We refer to our appointment as inspectors into the affairs of the Fund pursuant to an order (“the
Order”) of the High Court of Justice (the “Court”) of the Isle of Man dated 1 May 2012 and to our
subsequent correspondence, most recently your letter of 7 June 2012. We also refer to our telephone
conversation on 12 June 2012 which, as we discussed, was held on a without prejudice basis.

We recognise that there are differences of opinion between us and your clients regarding whether
LGIE and LGSPI are holding companies of the Fund and on related matters, and it may well be that
the best way to resolve that is to obtain a determination from the Court.

However in the meantime, in your letter and in our call, you have explained your clients’ willingness to
produce materials relevant to our work as inspectors on a voluntary basis, provided that such materials
are restricted to the 6 Sums as set out in the Order. You have also asked for clarification, in the form of
a narrowed list of materials, that we might consider to be relevant in any voluntary disclosure on your
clients’ part.

Without prejudice to any further request for information that we might make of your clients and others
pursuant to the Order, or any subsequent order(s) that the Court may make in this matter, and without
prejudice to our position generally, we thought it might be helpful at this stage if we were to give youa
more targeted list of requirements and accordingly we write to specifically request the following
documents pertaining to LGIE and LGSPI:

e Aletter from L.GSPI, in a form to be agreed between us, to the board of LGSC, to its auditors
and to its bankers authorising them to produce such information as we may seek solely in
connection with our investigation into the 6 Sums

¢  Aletter, in a form to be agreed between us, to the board of LGIOM, authorising it to produce
such information as it has in its possession and or control solely pertaining to the 6 Sums

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC is a member of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, a company limited by guarantee ( }
registered in England and Wales. The principal place of business of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLC is at the above address. Y o
Incorperation number 00934L. Members: D B Churcher, I G Clague, KM Cowley, P C Craig, N M Halsall and M Simpson. INVESTOR [N PEOPLE
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Certified copies of the financial statements of LGSPI and LGIE for the years 2007 through
2011 highlighting where the 6 sums have been recognised in those financial statements
Certified copies of any management accounts of LGSPI and LGIE for the years 2007 through
2011 again highlighting where the 6 Sums have been recognised in those financial statements
Certified copies of any board minutes and supporting loan documentation (including any
security documentation and registers of charges) belonging to LGSPI and LGIE pertaining to
borrowings between those entities and between either of those entities and LGSC and
highlighting which of those documents pertains to the 6 Sums

Certified copies of bank statements for LGSPI and LGIE for the years 2007 through 2011 in so
far as they pertain to the 6 Sums being received by LGSPI, and paid on to LGIE and or others
as the case may be

Certified copies of the charge documents pertaining to the reported charge in favour of LGSC
by LGSPI comprising the interests in LG South Africa owned by LGIE and Louis Family
Foundation, together with certified copy minutes approving the granting of this charge,
evidence and confirmation from LG SA that it has recorded the charge against the shares and a
certified copy of the most recent audited financial statements of the affairs of LGSA.

Certified copies of the minutes of LGSPI pertaining to each investment that it made into LGSF
and supporting bank statements showing the source of funds used to finance the various
investments

Certified copies of the bank statements of Louis Group Foundation showing the receipt of any
of the 6 Sums and the subsequent onward payment of any of the 6 Sums together with related
/ supporting documentation

Certified copies of bank statements for which ever entity retains the 6 Sums at this time

We hope that the above list is of help to you and your clients and look forward to hearing from you as
soon as possible, and in any event, within 7 days, with your confirmation or otherwise as to whether
your clients will produce the above information and over what proposed time scale.

Yours sincerely

Gordon Wilson
Joint Inspector
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RECEIVED VIA EMAIL - 3JULY 2012

Dear Mr. Wilson,

Re: Louis Group Structured Fund Plc (“the Company”)

We refer to our letter of the 26" June 2012 in which we anticipated being in a position to
revert to you this week in response to your request for assistance from our clients. We are
still working with our clients in order to volunteer assistance to you in your investigation, but
it has become clear to us that, unfortunately, it is going to take us longer than we had
anticipated to provide it. Progress has been slower than anticipated, in part, as a
consequence of Jacqui Owens suffering a rather nasty accidental knife wound to the hand.

We therefore write without delay to inform you that it is going to take us longer than we
anticipated to revert to you with a substantive response. Whilst we appreciate that you
would have preferred a substantive response this week, we hope that you will understand
that we are concerned to ensure that we have a full, complete and accurate picture so as to
ensure that our response to you is accurate and does not cause any misunderstandings or
further delay. We are confident that our approach will save time in the long run.

Given the impending Tynwald/Jubilee holiday and staff taking annual leave the following
week, realistically, we do not expect to be able to respond to you more fully before the week
beginning 16" Juiy 2012.

Please accept our apologies in this regard.

Yours sincerely

SIMCOCKS

Chris Arrowsmith

Director

For and on behalf of Simcocks Advocates Limited
Switch: +44 (0)1624 690300

carrowsmith@simcocks.com

In association with Samuels Richardson & Co, PO Box 3410, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands



Appendix 3 - LGSC Bank Statement Analysis
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Appendix 4 - LGSPI Bank Statement Analysis
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Appendix 5 - LGSPI Bank Statement Extract 1



£D060085£001 06082000

Stafement For:

APPENDIX /

LOUIS GROUP INTERNATIONAL

HOLDINGS LIMITED

Account Type:

Cash Management Account

Account Number. 5880-58316250
IBAN: GB0BRBOS16588058316250 st of Man Branch
BiC: RBOSIMDX 6Po Ba’; 1;,6 '
Currency: POUNDS STERLING Royal Bank Houss, 2 Vicoria Street,
Date: 28-Sep-07 DOUGLAS. IM38 TNJ,
isle of Man
Tel: 01624 B46464
DATE OUR REF. ‘,;’ﬁ';gf gﬂ.‘E DETAILS WITHDRAWN PAID IN BALANCE
CARRIED FORWARD 8,183.76 CR
09-Aug-07 330967841 TRF  LOAN LG PROP LOTUS 80,000.00
09-Aug-07 33967842 TRF  LOAN LGIOM 90,000.00 B,183.76 CR
15-Aug-07 34086488 TRF  LOAN SPRING GROVE 30,000.00
15-Aug-07 34086500 TRF  REPYT LOAN LGP LOTUS 20,000.00
15-Aug-07 34086501 TRF  LOAN LGIUK 27,000.,00
15-Aug-07 34066538 TRF  LOAN EMERALD PROPS 67,000.00 18,183.76 CR
16-Aug-07 34083123 FX  EUR 303,707.50 205,000.00
16-Aug-07 34093269 TRF  INT PYMT BUCKINGHA 4,704.53
16-Aug-07 34083270 TRF  REDEM CAP BUCKINGH 80,000.00
16-Aug07 34083271 TRF  REDEM BUCKINGHAM C 100,000.00
16-Aug-07 34063272 TRF  REDEM BUCKINGHAM | 5,400.00
16-Aug-07 34093273 TRE  REDEM BUCKINGHAM | 5,570.00 20,609.23 CR
M7-Aug07 34110628 TRE  LOAN LG STRUCT GAPT 180,000.00
17-Aug07 34110872 TRF  LOANLGIOM 180,000.00 20,508.23 CR
29-Aug-07 34167587 TRF  LOAN LGIUK 20,500.00
22-Aug-07 34174703 TRF  FINESSE INT ADJUSTME 1,209.67 1,308.80 CR
24-Aug-07 34208002 TRF  LOAN REPYT EMERALD 10,000.00
24-Aug-07 34208005 TRF  LOAN REPYT LGIUK 10,000.00 1,308.80 CR
30-Aug-07 34279552 TRF  LOAM SILVER STAR EST 300,000.00
30-Aug-07 34281454 TRF  VIRTUE INV HOLDINGS 80,000.00
30-Aug07 34281762 FX  EUR 441,830.00 300,000.00
30-Aug-07 34288405 TRF  LOAN LYSIS 10,000.00
30-Aug-07 34288406 TRF  LOAN LGIUK 15,000.00
30-Aug-07 34280436 TRF  LOAN LGIOM 55,000.00 1,308.90 CR
31-Aug-07 34284135 FX  AUD 854,630.00 265,839.59
31-AugQ7 34310154 TRF  NIXON PICS INTERES 768.00
31-Aug-07 34310155 TRF  ACTS FOUN LOAN REP 4,000.00
31.Aug07 34310156 TRF  C/ANEWMARCH 555,00 261,825.49 CR
03-Sep-07 34343477 TRF  LOANLGIOM ~ 80,000.60
03-8ep-07 34343496 OPQ  CAYMAN LGIH A1 (D L
03-Sep-07 34343406 CHG CHAPS CHARGE 15, . 1.810.49 CR
04-Sep-07 34366201 TRF  LOAN LG STRUCT CAPIT @
04-Sep07 34366304 TRF  LOAN LGIUK 20,000.00
04-8ep-07 34366305 TRF  LOANLGIOM 70,000.00
04-Sep-07 34366346 TRF  DUDLEY B PICS INT 262.00
|, 04-Sep-07 34366347 TRF  ALIWAL TRUST PICI 725.00
04-Sep-07 34366348 TRE  EVERETTD PICS INT 608.25
04-Sep-07 34366349 BAC B8 NEFDT SALARY 4,000.00
04-Sep-07 34366348 CHG  TWO DAY FAYMENT 0.50
04-Sep-07 34366350 TRF  ALIWAL TRUST RIC | 542.00
04-Sep-07 34366351 TRF  DIXON TRUST PICS | 1,000.00
04-Sep-07 34366352 TRF  VIDREY TRUST PICIN 1,458,00
04-Sep-07 34366353 TRF  MONTPELIER PICS IN 29,550.47 348,634.27 CR
06-Sep-07 34401784 TRF LOAN LGI UK 27,000.00
06-Sep-07 34401785 TRF  LOAN EMERALD PROP 0,500.00
06-Sep-07 34401786 TRF  LOAN SUN STONE 55,000.00
DB-Sep-07 34401783 TRF  LOAN LYSIS PROP 14,000.00 242,134.27 CR
07-Sep-07 34402282 TRF  LOAN REPAY SUNSTONE 65,000.00 297,134.27 CR

Note: Unless otherwlse statad, value date = transaction date

BAC - Automated Credit BGC ~ Bank Gira Credit CHG - Charges CHQ - Cheque CR - Cradit Balance D/D - Direct Debit DFT - Draft Issue
DR - Debit Balance FTL - Fixed Term Loan FX - Foreign Exchange INT - Interest |PO - Inward Payment MMD - Money Market Deposit
OPOQ - Outward Payment REF - Transaction Reference Number REV - Reversal S/0O - Standing Order TRF - Internal Transfer TXN - Transaction

The Royal Bank of Scolland Internaffonal Limited {RBS Intermational).

Page 7 of 9



P

L&GSE

11352002 Call Account

SUES

ACLOUNT

for the pe_-:i_ri.!gﬂggw 1,2000 to May 11, 2012

Posting Dare  Trans. ID  Transaction Description Additional Details Withdrawal Deposit Balance
Jul12/07 10351 Wire Transfer in LGIH Sub 150,000.00 150,000.00
10352 Wire Transfer in Spenser Sub 50,000.00 200,000,090
10353 Transfer To 11376002 Subs 10/07/07 250,000.00 (50,000.00)
Jul16/07 10521 Time Deposit Placed: 11352-183900 @ ~556;000-00 {600,000.00)
5.0000 %
Jul 17 /07 10831 Time Deposit Maturity: 11352-183900 Time Deposit Maturity S56:675:04 {49,924.66)
10540 Time Deposit Placed: 11352-184800 @ 55607538 (600,000.00)
5.0000 %
Jul18 /07 10852 Time Deposit Maturity: 11352184800 Time Deposit Maturity -B850:156-69~  (49,849.30)
10578 Wire Transfer In L G Struct Al Subs 250,000. 200,150.69
. 20/07 10648 Wire Transfer In STRUCTURED At CLASS 350,000.00  550,150.69
WuI27/07 11034 Wire Transfer In LG Struct AL Sub / 300,000.00  850,150.69
I
11062 Wire Transfer In Class AS Subs Z 50,000.00  200,150.69
11035 Transfer To 11376002 Subs 18/7/07 800,000.00 150.69
Aug 17/07 11894 Wire Transfer in LG (IOM) Ltd Subs 16/8 190,000.00  190,150.69
11995 Transfer To 11376002 Subs 16/8/07 180,000.00 150.68
Aug 31 /07 12538 Wire Transfer In James King Subs 1/9 150,000.00  150,150.69
Sep 6/07 12871 Wire Transfer In LGIH Subs 500,150.69
12851 Transfer To 11376002 0.00
Sep 18/07 13361 Wire Transfer In LGIH Subs 17/9 270,000.00 270,000.00
13376 Transfer To 11376002 Subs 18/9/07 270,000.00 0.00
Oct 2/07 14404 Deposit Scottish Life 500,000.00  500,000.00
14405 Transfer To 11376002 Subs 2.10.07 323,000.00 177,000.00
14406 Transfer To 11376002 Subs 2.10.07 500,000.00 (323,000.00)
Qct 3/07 14473 Wire Transfer in LGIH Subs 323,000.00 0.00
Nov 2/07 15879 Wire Transfer In Jenks A1 Subs 400,000.00  400,000.00
15880 Transfer To 11376002 Subs 01-11-07 400,000.00 0.00
NO(I 16 /07 16388 Wire Transfer In Heyes Subs 100,000.00 100,000.00
Nov 29 /07 16865 Transfer To 11376002 A2 Subs 16-11-07 100,000.00 0.00
Dec 6/07 23330 Deposit LGIH AS 145,000.00  145,000.00
23320 Transfer To 11376002 A5 Subs 06-12-07 145,000.00 0.00
Dec 18/07 23885 Wire Transfer In LGS A5 Subs 20,000.00 20,000.00
23886 Wire Transfer In LGS A2 Subs §5,000.00 75,000.00
23887 Wire Transfer In LGS A1 subs 330,000.00  405,000.00
23888 Transfer To 11376002 A5 subs 17.12.07 20,000.00 385,000.00
23889 Transfer To 11376002 A2 subs 17.12.07 55,000.00 330,000.00
23890 Transfer To 11376002 A1 subs 17.12.07 330,000.00 0.00
Jan 2/08 25511 Demand Deposit Interest te Dec 31, 2007 202.05 202.05

(20120511~ 11352 Cnfs As Admin Of Louis Group Structured Fund Clent Subs)
All figures are reported in Pounds Sterling unless otherwise noted.
Accounts with no transactions in the period wiil not be shown



LESE

riS?EUl}Z Premier Account

rund ACCoUnT

for the period January 1,2000 toMay 11, 2012

Posting Date Trams. ID  Transaction Description Additional Details Withdrawal Deposit Balance
Jun 30/07 283 Balance imported from Extract 19,977.05 19,977.05
Jul12/07 10353 Transfer From 11352002 Subs 10/07/07 250,000.00 269,977.05
10354 Wire Transfer Out Chaps 10.07.07 237,500.00 32,477.05
10354 Wire Transfer Fee Chaps 10.07.07 25.00 32,452.05
Jut20/07 10647 Wire Transfer Out LOAN 10/7/07 855,000.00 (82%.547.95)
10647 Wire Transfer Fee LOAN 10/7/07 25.00 \ (822,572.95)
Jul 27 /07 11035 Transfer From 11352002 Subs 18/7/07 900,000.00 77,427.05
Aug 17 /07 11995 Transfer From 11352002 Subs 16/8/07 190,000.00 267,427.05
, 11996 Wire Transfer Out Loan 16.08.07 180,000.00 87,427.05
: f E 11996 Funds transfer fee Loan 16.08.07 25.00 B7,402.05
Sep 6/07 12851 Transfer From 11352002 587,552.74
12852 Wire Transfer Qut Loan 4/9/07 @ Cof 112,552.74
12852 Funds transfer fee Loan 4/9/07 25.00 112,527.74
Sep 18 /07 13376 Transfer From 11352002 Subs 18/9/07 270,000.00  382,527.74
13375 Wire Transfer Out Structured Fund Loan 256,500.00 126,027.74
18/8/07
13375 Funds transfer fee Structured Fund Loan 25.00 126,002.74
18/9/07
Sep 27 /07 13688 Transfer EUR 8,303.56 @ 0.5867 From 6,389.14  132,301.88
11376003
Sep 28/07 13730 Transfer USD 1,714.99 @ 0.4859 From 83335  133,226.23
11376001
13831 Transfer To 10306001 admin fees April to August 15,000.00 118,225.23
07
Oct 1/07 14309 Adjustment interest to 30 Sept 07 1,034.56  119,259.79
Oct 2/07 14405 Transfer From 11352002 Subs 2.10.07 323,000.00 442,259.79
14406 Transfer From 11352002 Subs 2.10.07 500,000.00 942,259.79
,$ 3/07 14448 Wire Transfer Out Loan 02.10.07 475,000.00 467,259.79
; 14448 Funds transfer fee Loan 02.10.07 25.00 467,234.79
14450 Wire Transfer Out Loan 02.10.07 306,850.00 160,384.79
14450 Funds transfer fee Loan 02.10.07 25.00 164,359.79
Nov 2/07 15880 Transfer From 11352002 Subs 01-11-07 400,000.00  580,359.79
15883 Wire Transfer Out Loan 01-11-07 380,000.00 180,358.79
15883 Funds transfer fee Loan 01-11-07 25.00 180,334.79
Nov 19 /07 16480 Wire Transfer Out Structured Fund Loan 85,000.00 85,334.7¢
16-11-07
16460 Funds transfer fee Structured Fund Loan 25.00 85,300.79
16-11-07
Nov 20/07 16865 Transfaer From 11352002 A2 Subs 16-11-07 100,000.00  185,300.79
Dec 5/07 23261 Invoice 3883117 5,000.00 180,309.79

(20120511- 11376 CNFS LG Structured Fund}

All figures are reported in Pounds Sterling unless otherwise noted.
Accounts with no transactions In the period wilt not be shown



1001.00/9200106082000

pry

Statement For: LOUIS GROUP STRUCTURED

CAPITAL LIMITED
Account Type: Cash Management Account
Account Number: 5880-58345463
1BAN: GB61RB0OS16588058345463 Isie of Man Branch
BiC: RBOSIMDX PO Box 151, )
Currency: POUNDS STERLING Royal Bank Houss, 2 Victoria Street,
Date: 28-38[)-07 DOUGLAS. IM9g 1NJ.
Isle of Man
Tel: 01624 646464
LIMITED Opening Ralance: 0.00 CR
I-Z(Ng FLOOR USE Total Pald In: 2,250,063.66
RESTON HO R T e SR
8 GOLDIE TERRACE Jotal Withdrawn: .. 2,249,94285
DOUGLAS, ISLE OF MAN Closing Batance: . 121.01CR
DATE OUR REF. Kﬁ‘#f g,",’s DETAILS WITHDRAWN PAID IN BALANCE
30-Mar-07 OPENING BALANCE 0.00 CR
30-Mar-07 31766273 IPO  STRUCT FUND LOAN 240,000.00
30-Mar07 31771125 oro KRR i 740
30-Mar-07 31771126 CHG 15.00 244,85 CR
03-Apr-07 31827124 TRF  LOAN LGI HOLDINGS 6,000.00 6,244,865 CR
26-Apr-07 32124894 TRF  LGIOM CSP FEES 2,223.50 4,021.35 CR
29-May-07 32683004 TRF LG DISBURS LGIO0S 564.00 3.457.35 CR
20-Jun-07 33217776 INT GROSS 28/06 58345463 16,54 3,473.88 CR
11-Jul-07 33520647 PO STRUCTURED FUND LOAN 237,500.00 240,973.85 CR
13-Jul-07 33553297 TRF  LOANLGIH 240,000.00 973.88 CR
18-Jul-07 33609536 TRF  LOAN LGiH 900.00
18-Jul-07 33622705 IPC  STRUCTURED FUND LOAN 855,000.00
18-Jul-07 33622958 TRF  LOAN LGIH 850,000.00 5,073.89 CR
19-Jul-07 33624959 TRF  LOAN LGIH 5,000.00 73.89 CR
17-Aug-07 34106794 IPC  STRUCTURED FUND LOAN 180,000.00
17-Aug-07 34110628 TRF  LOANLGIH 180,000.00 7389 CR
04-Sep-07 34360544 IPO  STRUCTUREDR FUNE LOAN @
04-Sep-07 34366291 TRF  LOANLGIH 7389 CR
18-5ep-07 34560526 IPO  STRUCTURED FUND LOAN 266,500.00
18-Sep-07 346561236 TRF  LOANLGIH 256,500,00 73.89 CR
28-Sap-07 34891175 INT GROSS 27/09 58345463 47.12
CLOSING BALANCE 121.01 CR

Note: Unless otherwlse stated, value date = transactlon date

BAGC - Automated Credit BGC - Bank Gire Credit CHG - Charges CHQ - Cheque CR - Credit Balance D/D - Direct Debit DFT - Draft tssue
DR - Debit Balance FTL - Fixed Term Loan FX - Foreign Exchange INT - Interest [PO - Inward Payment MMD - Money Market Deposit
OPO - Qutward Payment REF - Transaction Reference Number REV - Reversal S/O - Standing Order TRF - Intenal Transfer TXN - Transaction

The Royat Bank of Scoliand International Limited (RBS Intemationat).

Page 1 of 1
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4001 05¢200102082000

APPENDIY &

Statement For: LOUIS GROUP INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
Account Typs: Cash Management Account
Account Number: 5880-58316250
IBAN. GB08RB0S16588058316250 iste of Man Branch,
BIC: REOQSIMDX PO Box 151,
Currency: POUNDS STERLING Royal Bank Houss, 2 Victoria Strsel,
Date: 28-Mar-08 DOUGLAS. IM99 1NJ.
Isle of Man
Tel: 01624 646464

DATE OUR REF. gﬂ','-gs gﬁs DETAILS WITHDRAWN PAID IN BALANCE

CARRIED FORWARD 392,087.61 CR
23-Jan-08 37162025 CHG SWIFT CHARGE 20.00
23-Jan-08 37160345 TRF  LOAN SILVER STARE 300,000.00
23-Jan-08 37160348 TRF  LOANLG INV LICHEN 200.00
23-Jan-08 37160349 TRF  LOAN LG INV GERANI 100.00 91,767.61 CR
24-Jan-08 37173868 TRF  37152025/AGT CHG 10.00
24-Jan-08 37178670 TRF  LGIOM REPAY LOAN 25,000.00
24-Jan-08 37181939 BAC  LOAN AL HOLDING 146.87
24-Jan-08 371819389 CHG  TWO DAY PAYMENT 0.50 116,610.24 CR
28-Jan-08 37112443 MMD  From Fixed Contract 2,000,000.00
28-Jan-08 37112443 MMD  GROSS INT PAYMENT 2,088.58
2B-Jan-08 37220244 MMD  To Fixed Contract 2,600,000.00 118,696.82 CR
29-Jan-08 37242195 TRF  FLIGHT INV FICILITY 435.00 118,131.82 CR
30-Jan-08 37220244 2B-Jan MMD  REV- To Fixed Contra 2,000,000.00
30-Jan-08 37220244  28-Jan MMD  Ta Fixed Contract 2,000,000.00
30-Jan-08 37220244 MMD  From Fixed Contract 2,000,000.00
30-Jan-08 37220244 MMD  GROSS INT PAYMENT 588.49
30-Jan-08 37220244 CHG BREAKAGE FEE 70.00
30-Jan-08 37249346 FX AUD 20,352.00 9,116.65
30-Jan-08 37269405 TRF  LOAN EMERALD PROP 12,000.00
a0-Jan-08 37260407 TRF  LOAN LGP GINGER 2,500.00
30-Jan-08 37274878 OPO  TFR LGIOM Barc 2686,000.00
30-Jan-08 37274878 CHG CHAPS CHARGE 15.00
30-Jan-08 37275055 MMD  To Fixed Contract 1,600,000.00 230,018.66 CR
31-Jan-08 37310956 TRF  LOAN LGIUKLTD 50,000.00
31-Jan-08 37311045 TRF  MORRIS DV & C PICS 50,000.00
31-Jan-0B 37311048 TRF  RATEERSTHUST Bl 1,377 50568 1,547,018.66 CR
01-Feb-08 37311078 TRF 21 10,620.00 i
01-Fab-08 37311078 TRF  EXCALIBR TST-PIC | 291.00
01-Fab-08 37311079 TRF  NIXON LM -PICS INT 768,00
01-Feb-08 37311081 TRF  ALIWAL -PIC INT&CA 51,267.00
01-Feb-08 37311083 TRF  BULWARK TST-RPICS | 490.00
01-Feb-08 37311084 TRF  DIXON A -PIC INT 1,000.00
01-Feb-08 47311085 TRF  NEWMARCH AD-FICS | 555.00
01-Feb-08 37326426 TRF  LOAN SILVER STAR 199.000,00
01-Feb-08 37326443 OPO ‘Cayman NatDavidso 200,000.00 T
01-Fab-08 37326443 CHG CHAPS CHARGE 15.00
01-Feb-08 37326445 OFPO 1,554,0000

PP Tl

01-Feb-08 37326445 CHG 00
01-Feb-08 37332081 TRF 500,000.00
01-Feb-08 37332084 TRF B0.T00,
01-Feb-08 37332085 TRF 778,600.00
01-Feb-08 37332086 TRF ggg&&gi
01-Feb-08 37337065 MMD 1,000,000.00 e 406,597.68 CR
04-Feb-08 37275055 MMD  From Fixed Contract 1,600,000.00
04-Feb-08 37275055 MMD  GROSS INT PAYMENT 1,176.99
04-Feb-08 37343664 MMD  To Fixed Gontract 601,176.99
04-Feb-08 37357197 TRF  LOAN REPAY SILVER 100,000.00 1,306,597.66 CR
05-Feb-08 37378574 TRF  LOAN LG STRUCT CAP 41,000.00 1,285,597.66 CR

Note: Unless otherwise stated, value date = transaction date

BAC - Automated Credit BGC - Bank Giro Credit CHG - Charges CHQ - Cheque CR - Credit Balance /D - Direct Debit DFT - Draft Issue
DR - Debit Balance FTL - Fixed Term Loan FX - Foreign Exchange INT - Interest 1PO - Inward Payment MMO - Money Market Deposit
OPQ - Quiward Payment REF - Transaction Refarence Number REV - Reversal S/Q - Standing Order TRF - Internal Transfer TXN - Transaction

‘The Royal Bank of Scotland International Limited {RBS Intsmationad).

Paga 7 of 13



800€ 1052004 0E082000

Statemnent For: LOUIS GROUP INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
Account Type: Cash Management Account
Account Nurmmber;  5880-58316250
IBAN GBOBRBOS16588058316250 P —
C: RBOSIMDX PO Box 151,
Currency: POUNDS STERLING Royal Bank House, 2 Victorla Street,
Date: 28-Mar-08 DOUGLAS, IM99 1NJ,
Ista of Man
Tol: 01624 846484

DATE OUR REF. gﬁ'igE m‘,’E DETAILS WITHDRAWN PAID IN BALANCE

CARRIED FORWARD 1,265,597.66 CR
05-Feb-08 37378613 TRF LOAN ZIRCON PROP 1,600.00 1,264,097.66 CR
07-Feb-08 37415956 IPO LOUIS GROUP INTL HLD 163,085.20 1,427,182.86 CR
08-Feb-08 37337065 MMD  From Fixed Contract 1,000,000.00
08-Feb-08 37337065 MMD  GROSS INT PAYMENT 1,001.10
08-Feb-08 37431465 TRF LOAN ZIRCON 25,000.00 2,403,183.96 CR
11-Feb-08 37348664 MMD  From Fixed Contract 601,176.99
11-Feb-08 37348664 MMD GROSS INT PAYMENT 802.99
11-Feb-08 37448857 TRF LOAN LGIOM NEWBUSA 80,000.00
11-Feb-08 37448870 OPQO  Rob Young-donation 5,000.00
11-Feb-08 37448870 CHG CHAPS CHARGE 15.00 2,909,848.94 CR
12-Feb-08 37472719 TRF LOAN ZIRCON PROP 1,000.00
12-Feb-08 37472720 TRF LOAN LGIOM P/DIV 15,000.00
12-Feh-08 37472745 TRF LOAN OCTAVIO VENTU 50.00 2,893,898.94 CR
13-Feb-08 37483854 MMD  Ta Fixed Contract 2,000,000.00
13-Feb-08 37405341 TRF LOAN SILVER LEAF 35,000.00
13-Feb-08 37495344 TRF LOAN LGIUK 30,000.00 898,898.94 CR
14-Feb-08 37513413 TRF LOAN FIN TUTORS IN 475.00 888,423.94 CR
15-Feb-08 37483894 13-Feb MMD REV- To Fixad Contra 2,000,000.00
16-Feb-08 37483884 13-Feb MMD To Fixed Contract 2,000,000.00
15-Feb-08 37433894 MMD  From Fixed Contract 2,000,000.00
15-Feb-08 37483894 MMD GROSS INT PAYMENT 551.23
15-Feb-D8 37483894 CHG  Breakage & Int. Fees 173.97
15-Feb-08 37530450 TRF LOAN ZIRCON 180,000.00
15-Feb-08 37532337 TRF LOAN LGP GINGER 500,000.00
15-Fab-08 37532341 TRF LOAN LGP GINGER 340,000.00
15-Feb-08 37532362 TRF LOAN LGP GR14 416.50 1,878,384.70 CR
18-Feb-08 37545734 OPO  TFR LGIOM BARC 272,670.00
18-Feb-08 37546734 CHG  CHAPS CHARGE 15,00
18-Feb-08 37545735 OPO LG Struct Fund18/2 +39,500.00
18-Fab-08 37645735 CHG CHAPS CHARGE 15.00
18-Feb-08 37546287 TRF  ZWICKER H PICS 35,000.00
18-Feb-08 37546288 TRF PENSION- BREWIS PICS 45,000.00
18-Feb-08 37546280 TRF OLERENSHAW J PICS 9,500.00
18-Feb-08 37545293 TRF HODGSON M&D PICS 50,000.00 1,605,684.70 CR
19-Feb-08 37566037 TRF LDAN LG PROP RED 250.00
19-Feb-08 37566384 TRF REPAY LN SILVER 8T 500,600.00
19-Fab-08 37566385 TRF REPAY LN SILVER ST 200,000.00
19-Fab-08 37566386 TRF REPAY LN HENIS GRO 100,000.00
19-Feb-08 37568418 TRF REPAY LN MAYWORTH 180,000.00
19-Feb-08 37568419 TRF REPAY LN RIVERLAND 60,000.00
19-Feb-08 37570773 TRF LOAN LG PROP EUCHA 100,000.00 465,434.70 CR
20-Feb-08 37586053 TRF 1L.OAN OCTAVIC VENTU 293,600.00
20-Feb-08 37588369 TRF LOAN LG 5TRUC CAP 125,650.00 29738470 CR
21-Feb-D8 37611752 TRF NEDCOR SHARE PROFIT 50,884.83
21-Fab-08 37611761 TRF SUSSMAN CLIVE 3,014.22
21-Feb-08 376811762 TRF H CASPER LG SETTLEME 3,914.22
21-Feb-08 37612122 TRF LOAN REPAY OCTAVIO 2893,600.00
21-Feb-08 37612138 TRF LOAN LGP GINGER 444,400.00 205,297.97 CR

Note: Unless otherwiss stated, value date = transaction date

BAC - Autemmated Credit BGC - Bank Giro Credit CHG - Charges CHQ - Cheque CR - Credit Balance D/D - Direct Debit DFT - Draft [ssue
DR - Debit Balance FTL - Fixed Term Loan FX - Forelgn Exchange INT - Interest [PQ - Inward Payment MMD - Money Market Deposit
OPQ - Qutward Payment REF - Transaction Reference Number REVY - Reversal S/O - Standing Order TRF - Internal Transfer TXN - Transaction

Tne Royal Bank of Scotland International Limited {RBS Intemational}.
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Staternent For: LOUIS GROUP INTERNATIONAL

HOLDINGS LIMITED

Account Type: Cash Management Account
Account Number: 5880-58316250

IBAN: GB0BRBOS16588058316250
Isle of Man Branch,
BiC: RBOSIMDX PO Box 151,
Currency: POUNDS STERLING Royal Bank House, 2 Victoria Street,
Date: 28-Mar-08 DOUGLAS. IM39 1NJ.
Isle of Man
Tel: 01824 646464

DATE OUR REF. g:LTEUE gﬁE DETAILS WITHDRAWN PAID IN BALANCE

CARRIED FORWARD 205,297.97 CR
21-Feb-08 37613915 TRF  LOAN LGIEUROPE 100,00
21-Feb-08 37613918 TRF LOAN LG PROP ASTER 2,700.00
21-Feb-08 37613917 TRF LOAN LG INV BLOOM 430.00
21-Feb-08 37613921 TRF LOAN LGI AZALEA 420.06
21-Feb-08 37613922 TRF LOAN LG PROP ANGEL 4,070.94
21-Feb-08 37613923 TRF LOAN LG PROP CYNAR 3,525.00
21Feb-08 37613524 TRF LOAN LGP AZALEA 2,571.52
21-Feb-08 37613925 TRF LOAN LGP RSG 2,098.84
21-Feb-08 37613926 TRF LOAMN LGP ANEMONE 3,462.80
21-Feb-08 37613027 TRF LOAN LG PROP MONAR 4,120.88
21-Feb-08 37613928 TRF LOAN LG PROP PROTE 4,217.12
21-Fab-08 37613929 TRF LOAN LGP DIANTHUS 3,386.80
21-Feb-08 37613833 TRF LOAN LGP GREY 1,854.05
21-Feb-08 37613859 TRF LOAN LG INV ANGELI 38.00 172,301.86 CR
22-Feb-08 37630821 TRF LOAN LGSC 1,000,000.00
22-Feb-08 37630822 TRF LOAN LGSC 1,700,000.00
22-Feb-08 37630835 TRF LOAN LGP GINGER 10,000.00
22-Feb-08 37630988 TRF REPAY LOAN ZIRCON 280,000,00
22-Feb-08 37635042 TRF LOAN LG INV LOTUS 10,000.00
22-Feb-08 37636208 BAC LOAN LGP ACACIA 88.13
22-Feb-08 37635208 CHG  TwWO DAY PAYMENT 0.50
22-Feb-08 37635210 BAC LOAN LGP SAGE 176.26
22-Feb-08 37635210 CHG  TWO DAY PAYMENT 0.50 3,132,036.57 CR
25-Feb-08 37655807 TRF LOAN LG PROP GINGE 10,000.00
26-Feb-08 37580809 TRF LOAN LGI EUROPE 500,000.00
26-Feb-08 37680610 TRF LOAN LGI EUROPE 500,000.00
26-Feb-D8 37680961 TRF LOAN LGt EUROPE 500,000.00
26-Feb-08 37680962 TRF LOAN LGI EUROQPE 82,000.00
26-Feb-08 37680924 TRF  LOANLGIUKLTD £00,000.00
26-Feb-08 37680895 TRF  LOANLGIUKLTD 500,000.00
26-Feb-08 37680996 TRF  LOANLGIUKLTD 500,000.00 3,030,036.57 CR
27-Feb-08 37673032 FX N2ZD 3,728.13 1,566.33
27-Feb-08 37698663 TRF LOAN LGP ALPINIA 15,000.00
27-Feb-08 37704870 OPO  Loan Deon dlients 500,000.00
27-Feb-08 37704870 CHG  CHAPS CHARGE 15.00
27-Feb-08 37704871 OPO  Loan Deon clients 37,925.48
27-Feb-08 37704871 CHG CHAPS CHARGE 15.00 2,475514.76 CR
28-Feb-08 37724541 OPO  ASTWOOD LAW C/A 344275
2B-Feb-08 37724541 CHG CHAPS CHARGE 15.00 2,472,057.01 CR
28-Feb-08 37724540 OPO  LOAN-Place onthe B 626.01
29-Feb-08 37724540 CHG SWIFT CHARGE 20.00
29-Feb-08 37732339 OPQ  LOAN-Place ontha B 1,038,773
29-Feb-08 37732339 CHG  SWIFT CHARGE 20.00
29-Feb-08 37732451 TRF GREGORY J FIX INCOME 10,000.00
29-Feb-08 37746798 TRF RIVERLAND CAP SETT 4,538.80
29-Feb-08 37748799 TRF SUNSTONE LOAN INTE 1,204.06
29-Feb-08 37745800 TRF LOAN INTEREST LYS| 41,585.43
29-Feb-08 37746803 TRF LOAN SETTLE LYSLS 188,9458.91 2,244 074,07 CR

Note: Unless otherwise stated, value date = fransaction dats

BAC - Automated Credit BGC - Bank Glrc Credlt CHG - Charges CHQ - Cheque CR - Credit Balance D/D - Direct Debit DFT - Draft lssus
DR - Debit Balance FTL - Fixed Term Loan FX - Foreign Exchange INT - Interest [PO - [nward Payment MMD - Money Market Deposit
OPO - Qutward Payment REF - Transaction Reference Number REV - Reversal S/Q - Standing Order TRF - Internal Transfer TXN - Transaction

The Royal Bank of Scatland Intemational Limlted (RBS International).
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Appendix 7 - Louis Group Entities

The following list includes 135 companies on the Isie of Man Companies register that have been
identified by the Inspectors as having some sort of relationship with the Louis Group. These include:

* Entities believed to be part of the Louis Group.
* Entities which, from a review transactions in the bank statements of LGSPI, arefhave been
involved in transactions with the LGSP! and are registered at the LGIOM’s Bucks Road

address.

Abbreviated
name used
= < by _
o e, _ | Company " = . Inspectors
‘Company Name Number Status _Entity Type | for Analysis
New Manx RED
LOUIS GROUP INVESTMENTS RED LIMITED 000213V DISSOLVED Vehicle
LOUIS GROUP INVESTMENTS PINK 2 LIMITED New Manx
(formerly 'louis Group Investments Grey limited’) 000214V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LOUIS GROUP INVESTMENTS PINK LIMITED 000215V LIVE Vehicle
LOUIS GROUP INVESTMENTS 18 LIMITED New Manx
(formerly "Louis Group Properties Red Limited') 000216V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LOUIS GROUP PROFPERTIES GREY LIMITED 000217V DISSOLVED Vehicle
New Manx
LOUIS GROUP PROPERTIES PINK LIMITED 000218V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx RSG
LOUIS GROUP PROPERTIES RSG LIMITED 000282v LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LOUIS GROUP INVESTMENTS 116 LIMITED 000304V STRUCKOFF Vehicie
New Manx
LOUIS GROUP PROPERTIES GR14 LIMITED 000526V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LOUIS GROUP PROPERTIES GR12 LIMITED 000527V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LOUIS GROUP PROPERTIES GR11 LIMITED 000528V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx PINK
LOUIS GROUP INVESTCO PINK LIMITED 000584V LIVE Vehicle
LOTUS
LG PROPERTIES LOTUS LIMITED (formerly 'Louis New Manx
Group Properties UK11 Limited") 000621V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx LAVENDER
LG PROPERTIES LAVENDER LIMITED 000833v STRUCKOFF Vehicle
New Manx AZALEA
LG PROPERTIES AZALEA LIMITED 000834V STRUCKOFF Vehicle
New Manx ANGELICA
LG PROPERTIES ANGELICA LIMITED 000835V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx LAVENDER
LG INVESTMENTS LAVENDER LIMITED 000836V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx AZALEA
LG INVESTMENTS AZALEA LIMITED 000837V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG INVESTMENTS MARIGOLD LIMITED 000838V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx ANGELICA
LG INVESTMENTS ANGELICA LIMITED 000839V LIVE Vehicle




New Manx SILVER
SILVER ARROW LIMITED 000887V LIVE Vehicle ARROW
New Manx
LGM PROPERTY SERVICES LTD 000909V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG (SWITZERLAND) LIMITED 000916V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LGRMB INVESTMENTS LIMITED 000917V DISSOLVED Vehicle
New Manx LOTUS
LG INVESTMENTS LOTUS LIMITED 000959V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx ASTER
LG PROPERTIES ASTER LIMITED 001011V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx DIANTHUS
LG PROPERTIES DIANTHUS LIMITED 001012V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG PROPERTIES ANEMONE LIMITED 001013V STRUCKOFF Vehicle
New Manx PROTEA
LG PROPERTIES PROTEA LIMITED 001148V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx PROTEA
LG INVESTMENTS PROTEA LIMITED 001147V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx DIANTHUS
LG INVESTMENTS DIANTHUS LIMITED 001148V STRUCKOFF Vehicie
New Manx SILVER
SILVER STAR ESTATES (PCC) LIMITED 001168V LIVE Vehicle STAR
New Manx
LOUIS GROUP (GULF) LIMITED 001188V DISSOLVED Vehicle
New Manx CYNARA
LG PROPERTIES CYNARA LIMITED 001214V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx ALPINIA
LG PROPERTIES ALPINIA LIMITED 001390V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx SCILLA
LG PROPERTIES SCILLA LIMITED 001391V STRUCKOFF Vehicle
New Manx MONARDA
LG PROPERTIES MONARDA LIMITED Q013g82v LIVE Vehicle
New Manx EUCHARIS
LG PROPERTIES EUCHARIS LIMITED 001303V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx LYSIS
LYSIS PROPERTIES (PCC) INC. 001522v LIVE Vehicle
New Manx | CHELONE
LG PROPERTIES CHELONE LIMITED 001670V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx TAZETTA
LG PROPERTIES TAZETTA LIMITED 001671V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG PROPERTIES JERSEY LIMITED 001672V DISSOLVED Vehicle
New Manx GINGER
LG PROPERTIES GINGER LIMITED 001673V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG PROPERTIES KANSAS LIMITED 001674V DISSQOLVED Vehicle
New Manx PECONY
LG INVESTMENTS PEONY LIMITED 001675V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG INVESTMENTS PLUME LIMITED 001765V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx ORCHID
LG INVESTMENTS ORCHID LIMITED 001766V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx BLOOM
LG INVESTMENTS BLOOM LIMITED 001767V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LOUIS GROUP PROPERTIES BLUE LIMITED 001769V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx BLUE
LOUIS GROUP INVESTMENTS BLUE LIMITED 001770V LIVE Vehicle




New Manx MEIKLE
MEIKLE LIMITED 001888V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx KINGARTH
KINGARTH LIMITED 001890V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx ACACIA
LG INVESTMENTS ACACIA LIMITED 002017V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx | GERANIUM
LG INVESTMENTS GERANIUM LIMITED 002018V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx ROSEBAY
LG INVESTMENTS ROSEBAY LIMITED 002019V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx PRIVET
LG INVESTMENTS PRIVET LIMITED 002020V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx REED
LG INVESTMENTS REED LIMITED 002021V LIVE Vehicle
LOUIS GROUP CAPITAL (IOM) LIMITED (formerly New Manx
‘LG INVESTMENTS AMARANTH LIMITED?) 002022V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG PROPERTIES BALM LIMITED 002023V DISSCLVED Vehicle
New Manx PERSIAN
LG PROPERTIES PERSIAN LIMITED 002024V LIVE Vehicle
LG INVESTMENTS ORANGE LIMITED {formerly New Manx
LG Properties Orange Limited") 002025V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG PROPERTIES LARCH LIMITED 002026V DISSOLVED Vehicle
New Manx SAGE
LG PROPERTIES SAGE LIMITED 002027V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG PROPERTIES LICHEN LIMITED 002028 LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG INVESTMENTS LARCH LIMITED 002560V STRUCKOFF Vehicle
New Manx BEGONIA
LG INVESTMENTS BEGONIA LIMITED 002623V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx JASMINE
LG INVESTMENTS JASMINE LIMITED 002624V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG INVESTMENTS SUNFLOWER LIMITED 0026838V STRUCKOFF Vehicle
New Manx SAFFRON
LG PROPERTIES SAFFRON LIMITED 002639v LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG PROPERTIES SENNA LIMITED 002840V DISSOLVED Vehicle
New Manx
LG INVESTMENTS ELDERBERRY LIMITED 002641V STRUCKOFF Vehicle
New Manx WILLOW
LG PRCPERTIES WILLOW LIMITED 002842V STRUCKOFF Vehicle
New Manx PETUNIA
LG PROPERTIES PETUNIA LIMITED 002643V STRUCKOFF Vehicle
New Manx
LG INVESTMENTS DAHLIA LIMITED 002644V STRUCKOFF Vehicle
New Manx VIOLA
LG PROPERTIES VIOLA LIMITED 002645V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG PROPERTIES MAGNOLIA LIMITED 002646V STRUCKOFF Vehicle
New Manx
LG INVESTMENTS BANKSIA LIMITED 002865V STRUCKOFF Vehicle
New Manx LGSLN
LOUIS GROUP SLN LIMITED 002877V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx
LG EUROPEAN PROPERTY {IOM) LIMITED 002947V STRUCKOFF Vehicle
SUN STONE LIMITED 003781V LIVE New Manx | SUNSTONE




Vehicle

New Manx SPRING
SPRING GROVE LIMITED 003784V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx MAYWORT
MAYWORTH PROPERTIES LIMITED 003786V LIVE Vehicle H
New Manx | GERMANY
LGI PROPERTY HOLDINGS (GERMANY) LIMITED | 004093V LIVE Vehicle
LGI PROPERTY HOLDINGS (GERMANY) 2 New Manx | GERMANY
LIMITED 004094V LIVE Vehicle
LGI PROPERTY HOLDINGS (GERMANY) 3 New Manx | GERMANY
LIMITED 004095V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx YELLOW
LOUIS GROUP INVESTMENTS YELLOW LIMITED | 004098V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx SILVER
SILVER LEAF PROPERTIES LIMITED 004099V LIVE Vehicle LEAF
New Manx
LOUIS GROUP PROFESSIONAL FUNDING PLC 004905V DISSOLVED Vehicle
LGSPI
LG SP Investments Ltd (formerly "Louis Group Foreign
International Holdings Limited") 005152F LIVE company
New Manx
LOUIS GROUP (IOM) SERVICES LIMITED 005581V LIVE Vehicle
New Manx ZIRCON
ZIRCON PROPERTIES LIMITED 007795V LIVE Vehicle
LOUIS GROUP INTERNATIONAL TRUSTEES Business
ISLE OF MAN 0177948 LIVE name
Business
LOUIS GROUP TRUSTEES 0201798 DISSOLVED name
Business
LOUIS GROUP FINANCIAL SERVICES 0205178 DISSOLVED name
Business
LOUIS GROUP PROPERTIES 0206228 DISSOLVED name
Business
LOUIS GROUP PROPERTIES (EUROPE) 0207808 DISSOLVED name
Business
LOUIS GROUP TRUSTEES {IOM) 0210028 DISSOLVED name
Business
LOUIS GROUP ISLE OF MAN 0215568 LIVE name
Business
LOUIS GROUP 0216078 LIVE hame
Business
LOUIS GROUP SERVICES 0225958 LIVE name
LOUIS GROUP INTERNATIONAL NOMINEES IOM
(ONE) LIMITED 032627C LIVE Company
IOM
LOUIS GROUP SECRETARIAL LIMITED 053155C LIVE Company
IOM
LG Nominees (IOM) Limited 070982C DISSOLVED Company
I0OM BRANTWOO
Brantwood Corporation Limited 072269C LIVE Company D
iOM
LOUIS GROUP (ISLE OF MAN) LIMITED 092332C DISSOLVED Company
LGIOM
LOUIS GROUP (IOM) LIMITED (formerly "Loutis IOM
Group International Trustees Limited") 105452C LIVE Company
I0M LE PLATINE
LE PLATINE FONDATION LIMITED 106196C DISSOLVED Company FONDATION
LG! PROPERTY HOLDINGS (GERMANY) 2 IOM GERMANY
LIMITED 112110C DISSOLVED Company




LGINT2

LOUIS GROUP INTERNATIONAL NOMINEES IOM
{TWO) LIMITED 112766C LIVE Company
IOM OCTAVIO
OCTAVIO VENTURES LIMITED 112768C LIVE Company
LGI PROPERTY HOLDINGS (GERMANY) 3 IOM GERMANY
LIMITED 113157C DISSOLVED Company
IOM VIRTUE
VIRTUE INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 114932C LIVE Company
LGl LAND
IOM SECURITIE
LGl LAND SECURITIES LIMITED 115283C LIVE Company S
IOM PLATINUM
LGI PROPERTIES PLATINUM LIMITED 115630C LIVE Company
IOM EMERALD
LGl PROPERTIES EMERALD LIMITED 115631C LWE Company
ICM
LG! PROPERTIES DIAMOND LIMITED 115632C LIVE Company
IOM
LGl PROPERTIES RUBY LIMITED 115633C LIVE Company
IOM TOPAZ
LGI PROPERTIES TOPAZ LIMITED 115638C LIVE Company
|IOM
LGl PROPERTIES SAPPHIRE LIMITED 115645C LIVE Company
IOM
LGl PROPERTIES AMETHYST LIMITED 115780C LIVE Company
IOM
LGI PROPERTY HOLDINGS (GERMANY) LIMITED | 115998C DISSOLVED Company
LGl PROPERTY HOLDINGS (GERMANY) 4 IOM
LIMITED 116372C LIVE Company
IOM
LGl PROPERTIES BERYL LIMITED 1175634C LIVE Company
IOM
LG| PROPERTIES CRYSTAL LIMITED 117535C LIVE Company
IOM JASPER
LGl PROPERTIES JASPER LIMITED 117536C LIVE Company
LOUIS GROUP PROPERTIES (GERMANY) oM GERMANY
LIMITED 117590C LIVE Company
IOM
LOUIS GROUP PROFESSIONAL FUNDING PLC 117736C DISSOLVED Company
iOM YELLOW
LOUIS GROUP INVESTMENTS YELLOW LIMITED 117814C DISSOLVED Company
WHITE
LOUIS GROUP INVESTMENTS WHITE LTD IOM
formerly 'Louis Group Properties Yellow Limited") 117815C LIVE Company
IOM
LOUIS GROUP INVESTMENTS BLUE LIMITED 117817C DISSOLVED Company
IOM
LOUIS GROUP PROPERTIES BLUE LIMITED 117818C DISSOLVED Company
LOUIS GROUP PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IOM
LIMITED 117925C DISSOLVED Company
IOM LGSC
LOUIS GROUP STRUCTURED CAPITAL LIMITED 119116C LIVE Company
IOM LGSF or
LOUIS GROUP STRUCTURED FUND PLC 119150C LIVE Company Company
LOUIS GROUP PROFESSIONAL CAPITAL IOM
LIMITED 119151C LIVE Company




Appendix 8 - Listing of the largest payments from LGSPI to LGIE



Appendix 8 — Listing of the largest payments identified from LGSPI to LGIE from analysis of LGSPI
bank accounts

Date Reference | Description per Statement Payment £
26-Feb-08 376800961 LOAN LGI EUROPE 500,000
26-Feb-08 37680610 LOAN LGI EUROPE 500,000
26-Feb-08 37680609 LOAN LGI EUROPE 500,000
11-Nov-08 42762080 LOAN LGI EUROPE 300,000
07-0ct-08 42203677 LOAN L.GI EUROPE 200,100
06-Mar-og 44876969 LOAN LGIE 110,000
24-Nov-08 42953562 LOAN LGI EUROPE LT 100,000
19-Nov-08 42888832 LOAN LGI EUROPE LT 100,000
Total 2,310,000
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Louis Group Structurced Fund Plc

Summary of Directors, Officers and Advisors

Directors

Scerctary

Registered Office

Company Number

Administrator

Cuastodian

Legal Advisors

L.oan Administralion Agent

Auditors

Robert Easton
Tan Bancroft
Andrew Nardone

Lynn Keig
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Douglas

Isle ol Man
IM1 3DE
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Third Floor
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Loujs Group Structured Fund Plc

Glossary

Certain terms and abbreviations used in these financial statements have specific meanings as set out helow:
"Board" means the board of directors
“FSC" means the Tste of Man Financial Supervision Commission

"Fund” means Louis Gronp Structured Fund Ple
"LGSC" means Louis Group Structured Capital Limited

"LGIE" means Louis Group International {(Furope) Limiled

"LGSPT" means 1.3 8P Investments Limited, formerly Louis Group International Holdings Limited




Louis Group Structured Fund Ple

Directors’ Report

The direetors present their reporl and the audited financial statcments of the Fund for the year ended 28 February 2011,
which show the state of Lhe company's affairs,

Incorporation

The Fund was incorporated as 4 public limited linbility company on 12 March 2007 under the Companics Acts 1931 to
2004 ol the (sl of Man. The Fund is an open-ended investment company of unlimited duration that conzplics with the
conditions of the Financial Supervision Commission Collective Investment Schemes (Expetienced Investor Fung)
Regulations 2010 of the Isie of Man, and as such is 4 Legacy Experienced Livestor Fund under those Regulations.

Principal activity and current status of affairs

The principal activity of the Fund is providing competitive property-backed structured finance. as well as structured
mezzanine [unding, by way of loans not exceeding a torm of 60 months, through an appointed 1.oan Administration
Agent, 10 investors and developers of commercial, industrial, retail and residential property.

The Fund was suspended on 11 February 2010 because the directors were unable to delerming the value of the underlying
investmenls of the Fund, Whilc valuation issues need 10 be addressed cach year, there is also a fack ol liquidity.
Consequenlly, the directors requested LGSC to develop, and have since received. a strategy Tor the realisation of Lhe
underlying property investments to cnable iL (o repay ils foans to the Fund on a timely basis. 1t is, however, apparent that
the markel condilions are making i difficult for LGSC w achicve this sirategy in a Hmely way and it is likely 1o seek an
exiension beyond the current term of the loan in an attempt 1o exiract a higher recovery. This makes it difficult for the
directors Lo remove the suspension of the Fund 1o repay its investors in a timely manner, [ (he meantime, he Fund
remains suspended.

‘Fo improve the ability of its borrowers lo maintain solveney and the value of the underlying assets, LGSC has requested
that the Fund mainlain the reduced rate of interest that was agreed by the direciors Jast year. The directors have agreed to
the extension of the current lerms.

In parallel with the stratepy agreed with LGSC. the Board has been in discussion with Dr Alan Louis with a view 1o
secking an ullemative solution.

During the course of the year ended 28 February 2018 the auditors considered the application of the loan made by the
Fund to LGSC and whether the funds bnd subsequently been provided wo Approved Partics in respect of Approved Reat
Estate in line with the terms of the Fund’s offering document and (he agreement bolween the Fund and LGSC. The
direclors accordingly received Iste of Man lepal advice on this issue. This advice concluded that the provision of a loan
by the Fund to LGSC and subsequently dent by LGSC o LGSPT appeared 1o be in line with the objectives of the Fund.
that EGSPI was an Approved Party and the funds provided to it by LGSC were used [or Approved Purposcs. [n addition,
the opinion stated that the Fund bad fulfilled its responsibility 1o take reasonable steps to ensure that fuads paid into the
Fund were used by Approved Parties for Approved Purpuses.

Following the receipt of this legal opinion, ihe FSC issued a direclion to the Fund 10 explain wheiher approximately
£6.5m of [undy lent by the Fund to LGS3C and subsequently lent by LGSC to LGSPT had then been provided 10 Approved
Partics and uscd for Approved Purposes. The Fund provided the FSC with informalion in answer Lo this direciion. On
30th March 2012 the 1°SC obtained an Order of the Isle of Man Courl 1o appoint Inspectors Lo invesligate six specilic
loans made by LGSPI to L.GIE and subsequently lent to olher parties amenmting 1o approximately £6.5m and the ultimate
usc lo which these loans were pul. The Qrder stipulated that the investigation and knowledge of the procecdings be
restricted to noticed parties, which on 25th May was exlended o include the Audilor. As a consequence, al the date of
this report, these financial stateiments arc not lo be released 10 shareholders or any parly nol covered by the Order.

In ihe meantime, discussions with Dr Alan Louis seeking an alternative selulion have been suspended.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Results and fransfer to reserves
The results for the period are sel oul on page 8.

The directors do not propose the payment of a dividend and recommend thal the net loss of £3,121,913 (2010: Loss
£9,580, 112} for the year be Laken 1o reserves.

Directers
The dircctors who served throughout the perind and 1o date are:-

Appointed Resigned Holding
Lynn Keig 12-Mar-07 02-Mar-11 -
Robert Easton i2-Mar-07 -
Andrew Nardone E8-Jun-09
lan Bancroft £2-8cp-0% .
Dirk Mudge 17-Apr-i7 3i-Mar-10 -

Auditors
The auditors, Grant Thornton, Chartered Accountants, continue in office under the provisions of section 12(2) of the

Companies Act 1982.
On behalf of the Board
N
""‘““?"‘wmaﬁm.f:;i‘
et

Secretary

I June 2012
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect of the Directors' Report and financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial stalements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations,

Isle of Man company law requires the directors 1o prepare linancial staterments for each finaneial year, Under that law
the directors have cleeled w prepare financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practice). The financial statoments are required by law to give a true
and fair view of the stale of afTairs of the company and al the profit or Joss of the company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:
- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- statc whether applicuble accounting standards have been followed, subjeet to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

- propare the (imancial siatements on the going coacern bagis unless it is inappropriate lo presume thai the
Compaity will contitiue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disctose with reasonable accuracy at any lime
the financial position of the company and to enable hem to cnsure that the Gnancial statements comply with the Isle of
Man Companies Acts 1931 to 2004, They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasanably open to
them to safeguard the assets of the company and o prevent and deteet fraud and other irregularitics.

In so far as the directors are aware:

- there is no relevant information of which the company's anditors arc unaware; and
the directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
information and ta establish that the auditors are aware of that information.




Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Louis Group Stractured Fupd PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Louis Group Structured Fund PLC for the year ended 28 February 2011
which comprise the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes, The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Aceepled Accaunting Practice).

This report is made solely to the Fund's members, as a body, in accordance with seclion 15 of the Isle of Man Companics
Act 1982, Qur audlt work has been underiaken so that we might state 1o the Fund’s members those matiers we are
required o stale {0 them in an auditors’ report and for re other purpose. To the fullest extent permiited by law, we do not
accepl or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Fund and the Fund’s members as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we bave formed.

Respective vesponsihilities of directers and auditors

As explained more fully in the dircetors’ responsibilitics stalement sel out on page 5, the dircctors arc responsible for the
peparation of the financial statements and for being satisficd that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility s to
audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intcrrational Standards an
Auditing (UK and Ir¢land). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s thical Standards
for Auditors,

Scope of the audit
An audit involves obtaining evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient Lo give

rcasonable assurance that the financial stalements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or crror.
This incledes an assessment oft whether the accounting policies are appropriale o the Fund's circumsiances and have
been consistently applicd and adequately disclosed: the reasonablencss of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors; and the overall presenlation of the financial slatements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-linancial
informatian in the directors report to identily material inconsistencies with the audited Grancial statements. [f we become
aware of any apparcnl material misslatements or inconsistencics we consider the implications for our repar,

Opinion on financial statements
[n our opinion the firancial staterments:

- give a true and fair view of the state ol the Fund’s afTairs as at 28 February 2011 and ol its loss [or the year then ended:

- have been properly prepared in sceerdance with United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practice: and
- have been praperly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Isle of Man Companizs Acts 1931 1o 2004,

Miatters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following mallers where the Isle of Mun Companics Acts 1931 1o 2004 require

us to report 1o you if, in our opinion:

- praper books ol aceount have not been kept, or retutns adequale for our audit have not boen recelved from branches not
visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accpunting records and returas: or

- cerfain disclosurcs of dircetors” remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= we have not received all the information and cxplanations we require Cor our audit,

Emphasis of Matter — Going Concern and recoverability of the loars receivable

[n forming our opinion on the financial stalements, which is not modificd, we have considerad the adeyuacy of the
disclosures made in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements and the Report of the Dircetors coneerning the Fund's
ability to continuc as a going concern and whether the loans receivable and interest on those loans arc recoverable.
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Independent Auditars’ Report to the Members of Louis Group Structured Fund PLC (continued)

Emphasis of Matter — Going Concern and recoverability of the loans receivable ( continued)

The Fund incurred a nel loss in the year of £3.12m. As al 28" February 2011 there continues 1o exist sipnificant douht
about the recoverabilily of the loan made o Louis Group Structured Capital Limited ("1.GSC™} and also whether inlercst
on that loan will be received. The loan 10 LGSC is secured by a debenture charging all the assets of LGSC however LGSC
has significantly impaired the value of the loans that it has made due to & materiai fall in the value of collateral provided
it by the companies that it hes made loans to. As a result of ihis, the value of the security provided 10 the Fund has
significanily diminished. As a result of the uncertainty regarding the recoverability of the loan capital and interest from
LGSC, the Fund has impaired the value of (he amounts due. The uncerainty regarding the receipt by the Fund of loan
interest due to it has also adversely impacted the cash flow of the Fund. These conditiens, 25 further explained in noles 9
and 10 (o the financial slalements, indicate the existence of a material uncerlainty which may casl significan! doubt about
the Fund’s ability 10 continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would
result if the Fund was unable to continue as a seing coneern,

Other Matter
Buring the course of the andit for the year ended 28 February 2010 we considered the application ol the loan provided {o

LGSC and in particular the loan that it then made 10 LG SP Investments Limited (“1LGSPI™) {formerly Louis Group
International Tloldings Limiled) and whether Ihe funds had been provided (o Approved Parties in respect of Approved
Real listate in line with the terms ol the Fund®s offering document. We considered this requirement in respect of the loan
receivable disclosed in note 4. We cncountered difficulties during the audit for the year ended 28 February 2010, in
conlirming thal funds provided to LGSC and from (hat company then fo LGSP! had all been wsed o line with his
requircment,

The direciors subsequently received Tsle of Man legal advice regarding whether Jimds were provided to Approved Parties
far Approved Purposes which concluded that the provision by LGSC of a loan to LGSPI appeared 1o he in line with the
objectives of the Fund, that T.GSPI fell within the definition of an Approved Party and the funds provided 1o it by 1L.GSC
were used for Approved Purposes and thul by ensuring LGSC entered into agreement with LGSPI, the Fund had
discharged its responsihility 1o take reasonable steps to ensure that funds paid into the Fund are used by approved parlics
for approved purposes. We make no comment on the legal advice received. Following the receipt of this lepal opinion,
the Isle of Man Financial Supervision Commission (“FSCY) issued a direction to the Fund w explain whether
approximately £6.5m ol funds lent by 1.GSC (0 LGSPT had then been provided t approved parties and used for approved
purposcs. The Fund provided the FSC with information in answer Lo this direction. We make no fiwther comment oo the
application ol the loans made by the Fund to LGSC, and by LGSC w LGSPE and beyond.

On 30" March 2012 the I'SC oblained an Order of the Iste of Man Court to appoinl inspectors to invesligale six specific
loans made by LGSP! to Louis Group International (Europe) Limited. The loans being investigaied originated from loans
made by the Fund to LGSC and subsequently lent ta £.GSPL and the 375C wish lo determine that the Ivans have been made
in compliance with the offering document. The inspestion had not concluded at the date of signing the sudit reporl.

The Order stipulated that knowledge of these proceedings be restricked to noticed parties and as a consequence of this,
the date of this report, these financial stalements are nul to be released to shareholders or any party not covered by the
Order.

Chartered Accountants 1 June 2012
Third Floor

Exchange House

54/58 Athol Street

Douglas

ISLLE OF MAN

ML 1D




Louis Group Structured Fund Pl

Profit and loss account for the year ended 28 February 2011

Mote 2011 2010
£ £

Bank interest 59 5,366
Loan interest 4 830,743 L3607
Loan interest impairment 10 (830,743) {1,222.629)
Total income s4 143,954
Expenses
Administration fee 3 62,072 63,359
Audit fte 12,053 10,575
Bank charges 131 821
Bank intetest paid - ]
Custodian fce 3 10,044 14,6086
Foreign exchange loss 44,288 12.465
Loan impairment 10 2,968,234 9.605,451
Miscellaneous fees 25,152 16,750}
Total expenses 3,121,874 9,724 066
(Loss} on ordinary activities
hefore and after taxation (3,121.915) (9,580,112

All items in the profil and loss account relute to continuing operations and all gains and tosscs arc recognised thergio,

The accompanying notes on pages |2 to 22 form an inegral part of the tinancial statements,




Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

Balance sheet as at 28 February 2011

Note 2011 2010
£ £
Assets
Loans receivable 4 16,536,034 19.673,5533
Cash and cash equivalents 9477 117,959
Accrued loan interest 4 - -
Deblor for manapemennt shares 100 100
Total assets 16,545,611 19.791,612
Liabilities
Other payables s 36,449 36,883
Redemptions payable 5 1,571,383 422 280
Total liabilities s 1,607,832 459165
Net assets 14,937,779 19,332 447
Management sharcs 6 100 100
Participating shares 6 247 261
Share premium 25,905,434 27229317
Retained earnings (190,968,002) (7,897,231)
Equity shareholders’ funds 14,937,779 19,332,447

The accompanying notes on pages 12 to 22 form an intcgral part of the [nancial slatements.

The financial statements were approved by the directors on {TM 2012 and signed on their behalf by

T
ian Bancroft Roberl Lastion
Divector Director
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to the holders of redcemable shares
for the year ended 28 February 2011

Share Share Retained
Capital Premium Earnings Total
£ £ £ £
Batance at 1 March 2009 246 25476,173 1,686,113 27,162,532
Changes i net assets atiributable Lo holders of redeemable
shures resulting from operations . - (9,380,112} (9.580,112)
[ssue of redeemable shares 60 6,796,042 - 6,796,102
Redemption of redeemable shares (44) {4.933,640) - (4,933,684)
Currency Lranstation {1} (109.258) {3,232} (112.491)
Balance at 28 February 2010 261 27.229.317  (7.897.231) 19332347
Share Share Retained
Capital Premium Earnings Fotal
£ £ £ £
Balance at | March 2010 261 27229317 (7.897.231) 19,332,347
Changes in nel assels allributable (o holders of redecmable
shares resulting from operations - - (3.321.915) (3,121.915)
[3suc of redeemable shares - - - -
Redemptlion of redeemable shares (1 (1.151,952) - {1,151,963)
Currency translation {3) (171.931) 51144 (120.790)
Balance at 28 February 2011 247 25,905,434 (10.9%8,002) 14,537,679

The accompanying notes on pages 12 lo 22 lorm an inlegral part of the financial statements.
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 28 February 2011

2011 2010
£ £

Operating activities
(1.oss) / profit from operating activities {3,121,91%) (9,580.112)
L.oan impairment 1,968,234 9,605,451
Decreasce / (increase) in debtors - 514,209
Incrense / (decrease) in creditors 1,148.667 431,273
Cash flows from operating activities 994,986 970,821

Financing activities
Proceeds from redeemable shares issued - 6,796,102
Redemption of redecnable shares (1,151,963) (4.933,684)
Loans advanced - (4.316,909)
Exchange differcnce 48,495 (112,491)
Cash flows used in financing activities (1,103,468) (2,566,982Y
Dccrease in cash and cash equivalents (108,482) {1,596.161)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 March 2060 117,959 1,714,120
Cash and cash equivalents at 28 February 2¢11 9477 117,959

The aceompanying notes on pages 12 10 22 form an inlegral part ol the Npancial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2011

| Incorporation and principsl activity
The Fund was {ncorporated as a public timited liability company on 12 March 2007 under the Companies Acts 1931
lo 2004 of the Islc of Man. The Fund is an open-ended investmeni company of unlimited duration that complics with
the conditions of the Financial Supervision Commission Callective Investment Schemes (Expericnced Investor Fund)
Regulations 2010 of the Isle of Man, and as such is a 1.cgacy Experienced Investor Fund urder those Regulations.

The principal activity of the iFund s providing campelitive propefly-backed structured Mnance, as well as struciured
mezzaning funding, by way of loans nol exceeding o term of 60 monlhs, through an appointed 1.oan Administration
Agent, to investors and developers of commercial, indusirfal, refail and residential property.

There nte twenty classes of Share, offered in Sterling, Uniled Staics Dollars, Buras and Swiss Francs. As at 28
February 2011, ten classes of share were in issue.

A separate income stalement and balance sheet is provided for each class on pages 19 and 21 respectively.

As at 28 Pebruary 2011, the 1'und had no employces. The Fund’s registered office is Louis Building, 29 Bucks Road,
Douglag. Igle of Man, M1 3DE, The reporting currency of the linancial statements is sterling.

(]

Significant accounting policies
In the abseace of accounling standards prescribed by law in ihe lsle of Man, the directors have resoived thal the

financial statements be prepared under the historical cost convenlion and in accordance with apphicable United
Kingdem Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

A sumimary of the more important accounting policies, which have been applied consistently, is set out betow,

Basis of preparation

The Fund™s shares arc issued in Sicrling (for classes A1, A2, A3, A4 and AS), United States Dollars (for classes B1,
B2, and B5) and Tluros (for classes ) and C2). The measurement currcney of cach class is ils respective currcney
and not the local currency of the Isle of Man.

Redecmable shares are issued by the Fund and allocated to whichever class is selecled by the investor. The procecds
of the iysue and the income arising therean are credited 1o cach class, which also bears expenses attributablc to that
class. Joint expenses are allocated o each elass based upon (heir relative net assel values. Upon redempiion,
sharcholders are only entitled to their proportion of the net assets held in the class to which their shares have been
allocaied. Nel asset valug per share for cach class is given in note 11.

The batanees at the year end for cach class arc translated into Sterfing at the rates of exchanpe ruling at the balance
sheet date and apgregated to provide the financial statements for the FFund.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions thal affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilitics and disclosuse of continpent assets and liabilitics
al the date of the financial slalements and the reported amounts of fncome and expenses dnring the period. Actual
results could difTer from those estimates.

Income and expenses
Income and expenses have been accounted for on an accruals basis.

Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprisc cash and bank balances and bank overdrafls,

Loans
interest bearing loans are imitially recorded at fair value, which represents the fair value of the consideration received.
Interest is caleulated at each valuation poinl and is derived from the undertying reference rate used by cach Fund

clays,




Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2011 (continued)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Forcign currency translation
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forcign currencies at the balance sheet date ure converied into Sterfing
at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are converled into Sterling at the average exchiange rate for the year.

(iains and losses on exchange arc taken to the profit and loss account. Exchange differences arising from the resulis of
movements in the share premium accounl are taken to the statement of changes in nel assels atiributable t0 the holders
of redecmahle shares,

Taxation
The Fund will be subject to tax at 0% on its income in the Esle of Man,

Net assct value per participating share

The net asset vatue per parlicipaling share disclosed in note 12 is calculated in accordunce with the Articles of
Association by dividing the ret assets attributable to cach class by (he numnber of redeemable shares issued for cach
clags ai the year end.

3 Fees

Administration fee
The Fund pays 1o the Administrator un annual fee at the rate of 0.20 per eent of the Net Assel Value thal does nol

exceed £10,000,000; and at the rate of (.15 per cent of that part of the Nel Assct Value (hat exceeds £10,000,000.
subjeet Lo a minimum of £7.80( per annum per Class for Class A and Class C shares, and a miniowm of £2,400 per
annum per class for Class B shares.

Custodizn fee
The Fund pays to the Custodian an annual lce al the rate of 0.03 per ceml of the Net Asset Valuc, subjeet o o
minimum of £10,000 per annum,

4 Loans reccivabile 2011 2010

£ £

Loans reeeivable 29,109,719 29,279,004

Loan impairment (12,573,685) (9,605,451)

Total 16,536,034 19,673,553

Loan interest received 2011 2010

£ £

Loan interest received 830,743 1,361,017

Loan interest accraed 2 2010

£ L

Loan interest acerued 2,044,725 1,222,629

[.oan interest impairment (2,044,725) (1,222,629)
Total - =
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2011 {continued)
4 Loans receivable (continued)

On 16 March 2007 the Pund entered inte a Loan Facifily Agreement with Louis Group Structured Capital Limiled o
provide structured mezzanine loans. The purposes were subsequently exiended in April 2009 1o include competitive
property-backed structured {tnance as well. The toans could be offered in Sterling, United States Dellars, Luros or
Swiss Francs and arc not subjeet 10 an aggrogate maximum amount save that they do not exceed the corresponding
subscription for participating sharcs in the Fund. The foans are secured by a debenture charging all the assets of 1.ouis
Group Structured Capital Limited to the Fund. The Bourd became aware that market wrbulence was having o
detrimentai effect on the ability of borrowers to meet their intersst oblipations, and so Felt #1 prudent Lo impair the
value of loans oulstanding by 46.5% (2010: 35.5%). Thers is pravision for the inleres( rate charged 10 be re-negotiated
on a monthly basis bul, since the suspension of thi: Fund, the interest raie las not been changed and payment of
interest has been deferred.

§ Other payables 2011 2010
£ £

Administration fee 10,299 13,196
Miscellancous expense 21,811 20,925
Custodian lee 4,339 5,764
Tatal . 36,449 36,885
Redemptions payabic 1,871,383 422,280
Total liabilitics 1,607,832 459,165

The accounts for the Fund for the prior year and as approved by the Board on 17 February 2011 rccognised
redemptions payable and oulstanding as al 28 February 2010 of £422,280, Tlowever, since the linancial statements
were appraved it bas been discovered that a number of redemption requests were made immediately prior to the
suspension of the Fund on {1 February 2016, but had not been processed at that time. Having taken legal advice, the
Board has agreed 10 aceept these redemption requests. The financial stalements for the period ended 28 February 2010
have not been restated in respect of these redemptions. The amount payable at 28 February 2011 in respect of such
additional redemiplions is £1,149,103.

& Share capital

201t 2010
Authorised share capital
100 Management shares of £1.00 par value £100 £100
600,000 Unclassificd shares of £0.001 par value £ 600 £ 600
600,000 Unclassificd shares of US$0.001 par value US$ 600 USS 600
600,000 Unclassificd shares of €0.001 par value € 600 €600
600,000 Unclassificd shares of C1IT0.001 par vajuc CHF 600 CHF 600

The Management shares carry the cight o one vote al annual general meetings, They do not carry the rights to
participale in the profils or assets ol the Fund, (Management shares in issue; 100 (2010: 100)).

Unclassified shares (the “participating shares™} do not carry the right {0 vote al general mectings.
Participating shares entitle the holders thercof 10 any dividends that may be declared in respect of their shases and in

the surplus on a winding up after the nominal amount of management shares has been repaid. They may be redeemed
at net assct value per share, of the respective share class on any dealing day in accordance with the 'unds articles.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2011 (continued)

6 Share capital (confinned)

Issued share capital

Class Al Class A2 Class A3 Class A4 Class A5 Total

shares shares shares shares shares
Shares of £0.001 each £ 4 £ £ £ £
At 01 March 2010 60 87 37 8 3R 230
Issued in period 2 - - . -
Redeemed in period (6) {9 - - - (1o
At 2B February 2011 54 83 37 8 18 220
Class Al Class A2 Class A3 Class A4 Class A5 Total

shares shares shares shares shares
Number of shares of £0.00 Number Number Number Number Number Number
At 01 March 2010 59.477.54 86,255.66 3784559 8,623.43 37.948.01 230,150.23
Issued in period - - - - - -
Redeemed in period (6,217.63) (3.864.26) - - - 10.081.89)
At 28 February 2011 53,259.91 8239140  37,845.59 8,623.43 37,948.01 220,068.34
Class Bl Class B2 Class BS Total

shares shares shares
Shares of US$0.001 each 1S$ USs$ (PR 8%
At 01 March 2010 | 1 25 27
issucd in period - - - -
Redeemed in period (1) - - ()
At 28 February 2011 - ] 25 26
Class Bl Class B2 Class BS Total

shares shares shares
Number of shares of US$0.001 cach Number Number Number Number
AL01 March 2019 472.68 1,000.00 235,000.00 26,972.68
{ssued in period - - - -
Redeemed in period {H25.50) - - (925,501
At 28 February 2011 47.18 1,000.00 25,000.00 26,047.18
Class C1 Class C2 Total

shares shares
Shares of €0.001 each EUR ELUR EUR
At 01 March 2010 9 5 14
[ssued in period - - :
Redeemed in period - - -
At 28 February 2(H 1 9 5 15




Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2011 (continued)

6 Share capital (continued)

Class C1 Class C2 Total

shares shaires
Number of shares of €0,001 cach Number Number Number
AL 0Ol March 2010 9,434.99 4,688.90 14,123.89
[ssued in period - ; -
Redeemed in peried (290.67) - (200.67)
At 28 February 2011 9,[44.32 4,688.90 13,833.22

The nominal valve of participating shares as at the year end is £247, which is made up of £220.08 for GBP shares,

£16.03 for USEY shares (325), and £11.74 for EUR shares (€14},

7 Related party transactions

‘The aggrepate value of transactions and culstanding balances with related partics is as fallows:

Entity Relationship  Transaction Transaction Balance

Value Outstanding
Louis Group Structured Capital Limited Common directors Loan advance £ £
At 0l March 2010 19,673,553 19,673,533

Chanpe in period

(3,137,519

(3.137.519)

At 28 February 2011

16,536,034

16,336,034

The foan interest receivable as due from 1.GSC for (he year ended 28th February 2011 amoeunted 10 £830,743 (2010:

£1,361,007). This was fully impaired at the balance sheet date.

The following enlitics, which have a director in comman with the Fund, are investors at the balance sheet date;

Louis Group Investments 1§ Limited (formerly Louis Group Properties Red 1.imited)

Louis Group International Nominees (TWQ) Limited on behalf of Lonis Group SEN Ltd

Louis Group (}OM) Limited as trustecs of Buckingham Trust
Silver Star listates (PCC} Limited

lan Bancrofi is Managing Director of Cayman Nalional Bank & Trust Company (Isle of Man) Limited and of Cayman
National Fund Services (Isle of Mun) Limiled, who as custodian and adminstrator respectively to the Fund, are

entitled 1o fees as outfined in note 3.

All transactions with related partics, are conducied on normal commercial terms and at non-preferential interest rates,

8 Ultimate condrofling party

LGSPE (formerly Louis Group international [oldings Limited} and LGIE each hold 50% of the management shares

in the Fund. The Louis Fanily Foundation is considered the ultimate controlling party.

9 Recoverability of loans

Furthet 10 note 4 in the notes 1o the financial slatements and having considered thal (the loans made are not fully
recoverable at the year-end, the directors have instigated an asset realisation strategy as set out in the directors report

with a view o realising assets in an orderly fashion to maximise recoverability of the Joans in the future,




Louis Group Structured Fund Plc

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2011 (continued)

9 Recaverability of loans (continned)

The prospects lor realising assets at good value would appear o be diminishing since the initial indicalors of a
recovery have reversed. The property owning companies have come under severe pressurc from their primary lenders
who are, in many inslances, imposing rental sweeps or requiring compliance with covenants. 1 appears that scope o
renegotiale lerms are timited wilh mosl banks not supportive of renewing facililies or agrecing new terms. The assel
realisalion sirategy that has been put in place, with a view to realising assels in an orderly fushion to maximise value
and build up reserves o meet redemptions when the suspension of the Fund is lifled, has not been able 10 maet
expectalions.

10 Loan impairment and saspension of Fuad

Al a board meeting of the Fund held on 4 Decetnber 2009, it was apreed to make an impairment provision of 10% of
the fuce value of loans due and reccivable from LGSC, with cifecl from 01 Qctober 2009, pending further discussions
with the directors of L.GSC regarding repayment of it's obligations to the Fund.

Al a meeting held on 11th Pebruary 2010 the Board™s initia] reassessment of the assets of the Fund revealed a level off
uncertainty in the total value of the asscts such that. in the opinion of the directors, Lhe Net Assel Value could nol be
ascortained with sulicient centainly. As a resull, in accordance witl Lhe powers given o the Board under aricle 35 of
the Atticles of Association, the Baard decided to exercise prudence and 1o suspend the determination of the NAVY
while it sought revaluations and further financial information in respect of the underlying assels 1o provide evidence
upan which il can rcasonably establish a value. This led the directors 10 make an impaimment as at Febroary 2010 of
35.50%.

The Board has continued lo review the valuations reccived on the underfying assets. It has been found thal poor
market condilions and the inabilily of the property company directors to get commitments from their bankers for
ongoing support, has resulted in difficulty in ensuring that the assct realisation strategy being carricd out by 1L.GSC
will produce a reasonably determined outcome. This cannd be ascertained with the level of reliability that would
cnable the direclors to lifi its suspension of the [Fund. This has necessitated a further impairment of £2,968,234 of
capitai and £830.743 of accrued intercst for the year under review. IL is cxpected that there will be further impairments
in the 2012 & 2013 financial years as valaations remain exposed to the ceonomic condilions thal are prevailing at this
time,

Comparatives

The comparative figures for the year ended 28 February 2010 cash {Jow stalement have been restaled in aceordance
with FRS 28 - "Corresponding Amounts”, to reclassily the loan impairment of £2,605,451 as part of the operuting,
activitics and to restate Lhe loans advanced o £4,316,909. This is o cnsure comparabilily with the current year
figures. This reclassification has had no financial impact on the cash and cash equivalents.
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